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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Hospital Managers
Hurley Medical Center

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities, fiduciary fund, and
blended component unit of Hurley Medical Center (the "Medical Center"), a component unit of the City of Flint,
Michigan, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the business-type activities, fiduciary fund, and blended component unit of Hurley Medical Center as of
June 30, 2019 and 2018 and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows thereof for the years then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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To the Board of Hospital Managers
Hurley Medical Center

Other Matters

Required Supplemental Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, schedule of changes in the net pension liability and related ratios, schedule of Medical
Center contributions, schedule of changes in the net OPEB liability and related ratios, schedule of OPEB
contributions, and schedule of OPEB investment returns, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements,
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, which considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplemental information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 30, 2019 on
our consideration of Hurley Medical Center's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Hurley Medical Center's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

October 30, 2019
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+XUOH\�0HGLFDO�&HQWHU��
0DQDJHPHQW¶V�'LVFXVVLRQ�DQG�$QDO\VLV�

 ��

Our GLVFXVVLRQ� DQG� DQDO\VLV� RI� +XUOH\� 0HGLFDO� &HQWHU¶V� �WKH� �0HGLFDO� &HQWHU´�� ILQDQFLDO� SHUIRUPDQFH�
SURYLGHV�DQ�RYHUYLHZ�RI�WKH�0HGLFDO�&HQWHU
V�ILQDQFLDO�DFWLYLWLHV�IRU�WKH�ILVFDO�\HDUV�HQGHG�-XQH�����������
������DQG�������3OHDVH�UHDG�LW�LQ�FRQMXQFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�0HGLFDO�&HQWHU
V�EDVLF�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��ZKLFK�
EHJLQ�RQ�SDJH����8QOHVV�RWKHUZLVH�LQGLFDWHG��DPRXQWV�DUH�LQ�WKRXVDQGV��

)LQDQFLDO�+LJKOLJKWV��

7KH�0HGLFDO�&HQWHU�UHSRUWHG�RSHUDWLQJ�LQFRPH�RI�������PLOOLRQ�IRU�WKH�ILVFDO�\HDU�HQGLQJ�-XQH������������
7KLV�UHSUHVHQWV�DQ�LQFUHDVH�RI������PLOOLRQ�IURP��������2SHUDWLQJ�LQFRPH�IRU�WKH�ILVFDO�\HDU�HQGHG�-XQH�����
�����ZDV�������PLOOLRQ��UHIOHFWLQJ�D�GHFUHDVH�IURP�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�-XQH�����������

8VLQJ�WKLV�$QQXDO�5HSRUW��

7KH�0HGLFDO�&HQWHU
V�EDVLF�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�FRQVLVW�RI�WKUHH�VWDWHPHQWV����D��D�VWDWHPHQW�RI�QHW�SRVLWLRQ��
�E��D�VWDWHPHQW�RI�UHYHQXHV��H[SHQVHV��DQG�FKDQJHV�LQ�QHW�SRVLWLRQ��DQG��F��D�VWDWHPHQW�RI�FDVK�IORZV��
7KHVH�EDVLF�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�LWV�UHODWHG�QRWHV�SURYLGH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DERXW�WKH�DFWLYLWLHV�RI�WKH�0HGLFDO�
&HQWHU��LQFOXGLQJ�UHVRXUFHV�KHOG�E\�WKH�0HGLFDO�&HQWHU�EXW�UHVWULFWHG�IRU�VSHFLILF�SXUSRVHV�E\�FRQWULEXWRUV��
JUDQWRUV��RU�HQDEOLQJ�OHJLVODWLRQ��

7KH�6WDWHPHQW�RI�1HW�3RVLWLRQ�DQG�6WDWHPHQW�RI�5HYHQXHV��([SHQVHV��DQG�&KDQJHV�LQ�1HW�3RVLWRQ�

7KH�0HGLFDO�&HQWHU
V�EDVLF�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�EHJLQ�ZLWK�WKH�6WDWHPHQW�RI�1HW�3RVLWLRQ�RQ�SDJH�����7KHUH�
ZDV�DQ�LQFUHDVH�LQ�RSHUDWLQJ�PDUJLQV���(YHQ�WKRXJK�LQSDWLHQW�DQG�RXWSDWLHQW�YROXPH�GURSSHG��LQFUHDVHV�LQ�
FDVH�PL[�DQG�REVHUYDWLRQ�GD\V�UHVXOWHG�LQ�D�VWDEOH�SRVLWLRQ���7KH�0HGLFDO�&HQWHU�VWLOO�OHDGV�WKH�LQSDWLHQW�
PDUNHW�VKDUH�DV�PRQLWRUHG�E\�WKH�0LFKLJDQ�+RVSLWDO�$VVRFLDWLRQ�IRU�WKH�ODVW����TXDUWHUV��7KH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�
QHW�SRVLWLRQ�DQG�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�UHYHQXHV��H[SHQVHV��DQG�FKDQJHV�LQ�QHW�SRVLWLRQ�UHSRUW�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DERXW�
WKH�0HGLFDO� &HQWHU
V� UHVRXUFHV� DQG� LWV� DFWLYLWLHV� WKDW� UHIOHFW� WKLV� DFWLYLW\�� 7KHVH� VWDWHPHQWV� LQFOXGH� DOO�
UHVWULFWHG�DQG�XQUHVWULFWHG�DVVHWV�DQG�DOO�OLDELOLWLHV�XVLQJ�WKH�DFFUXDO�EDVLV�RI�DFFRXQWLQJ��$OO�RI�WKH�FXUUHQW�
\HDU
V�UHYHQXHV�DQG�H[SHQVHV�DUH�WDNHQ�LQWR�DFFRXQW�UHJDUGOHVV�RI�ZKHQ�FDVK�LV�UHFHLYHG�RU�SDLG��

7KHVH�WZR�VWDWHPHQWV�UHSRUW�WKH�0HGLFDO�&HQWHU
V�QHW�SRVLWLRQ�DQG�FKDQJHV�LQ�WKHUHLQ��7KH�QHW�SRVLWLRQ�
SULPDULO\�LQFUHDVHG��SULPDULO\�GXH�WR�SRVLWLYH�RSHUDWLQJ�SHUIRUPDQFH��IRU�ILVFDO�\HDUV�HQGLQJ������DQG�������
UHVSHFWLYHO\��E\�������PLOOLRQ�DQG������PLOOLRQ��

7KH�6WDWHPHQW�RI�&DVK�)ORZV��

7KH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�FDVK�IORZV�UHSRUWV�FDVK�UHFHLSWV��FDVK�SD\PHQWV��DQG�QHW�FKDQJHV�LQ�FDVK�UHVXOWLQJ�IURP�
RSHUDWLRQV�� LQYHVWLQJ�� DQG� ILQDQFLQJ� DFWLYLWLHV�� � 'XULQJ� ������ WKH� FDVK� SRVLWLRQ� RI� WKH� 0HGLFDO� &HQWHU�
LQFUHDVHG�E\�DSSUR[LPDWHO\�������PLOOLRQ�WR�������PLOOLRQ��

�

�



+XUOH\�0HGLFDO�&HQWHU��
0DQDJHPHQW¶V�'LVFXVVLRQ�DQG�$QDO\VLV��&RQWLQXHG��

� 

7KH�6WDWHPHQW�RI�1HW�3RVLWLRQ��

� � ����� � � ����� � � ����� � �
$VVHWV� � � � �
&XUUHQW�DVVHWV��OHVV�DVVHWV�OLPLWHG�WR�XVH� � �� ��������� �� ��������� �� ��������� �
$VVHWV�OLPLWHG�DV�WR�XVH� � � ��������� � ��������� � ��������� �
&DSLWDO�DVVHWV� � � ��������� � ��������� � ��������� �
2WKHU�DVVHWV� � � ������� � ������� � ������� �

7RWDO�DVVHWV� � � �������� � �������� � ��������� �

'HIHUUHG�2XWIORZ�RI�5HVRXUFHV� � � �������� � �������� � �������� �

7RWDO�DVVHWV�DQG�GHIHUUHG�RXWIORZ�RI�
UHVRXUFHV
� � � ��������� � ��������� � ��������� �

/LDELOLWLHV� � � � �
&XUUHQW�OLDELOLWLHV� � � �������� � �������� � �������� �
1HW�SHQVLRQ�23(%�OLDELOLW\� � � �������� � ��������� � ��������� �
/RQJ�WHUP�GHEW� � � �������� � �������� � �������� �
2WKHU�ORQJ�WHUP�OLDELOLWLHV� � � �������� � �������� � �������� �

7RWDO�OLDELOLWLHV� � � �������� � �������� � ��������� �

'HIHUUHG�,QIORZ�RI�5HVRXUFHV� � � �������� � �������� � ������� �

7RWDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DQG�GHIHUUHG�LQIORZ�RI�
UHVRXUFHV
� � � ��������� � ��������� � ��������� �

1HW�3RVLWLRQ� � � � �
1HW�LQYHVWPHQW�LQ�FDSLWDO�DVVHWV� � � �������� � �������� � �������� �
'RQRU�UHVWULFWHG�IRU�VSHFLILF�RSHUDWLQJ�
DFWLYLWLHV
� � � ������� � ������� � ������� �

8QUHVWULFWHG� � � �������� � ������� � ������� �

7RWDO�QHW�SRVLWLRQ� �� �������� �� �������� �� �������� �
�

7KH� 0HGLFDO� &HQWHU
V� QHW� SRVLWLRQ� LV� WKH� GLIIHUHQFH� EHWZHHQ� LWV� DVVHWV� DQG� OLDELOLWLHV� UHSRUWHG� LQ� WKH�
VWDWHPHQW�RI�QHW�SRVLWLRQ�RQ�SDJHV���DQG����7KH�0HGLFDO�&HQWHU
V�QHW�SRVLWLRQ�LQFUHDVHG�IRU�WKH�ILVFDO�\HDUV�
HQGLQJ�-XQH����������DQG�������E\�������PLOOLRQ�DQG������PLOOLRQ��UHVSHFWLYHO\��SULPDULO\�GXH�WR�SRVLWLYH�
RSHUDWLQJ�SHUIRUPDQFH��QHW�RI�LQYHVWPHQW�LQFRPH�DQG�ORVVHV����

7KH�0HGLFDO�&HQWHU
V�XQUHVWULFWHG�FDVK�DQG� LQYHVWPHQWV�SRVLWLRQ� LQFUHDVHG� LQ������E\�������PLOOLRQ� WR�
�������PLOOLRQ�DW�-XQH������������5HVSHFWLYHO\��WKH�GD\¶V�FDVK�RQ�KDQG�LQFUHDVHG�IURP�������GD\V�LQ������
WR�������GD\V�LQ�������7KH�PDMRU�LQFUHDVH�LQ�FDVK�ZDV�SULPDULO\�GXH�WR�DQ�LQFUHDVH�LQ�RSHUDWLQJ�UHYHQXH�
GXULQJ�������

7KH� 0HGLFDO� &HQWHU¶V� OLDELOLW\� SRVLWLRQ� ZDV� FKDQJHG� SULPDULO\� GXH� WR� WKH� SD\�GRZQ� RI� ORQJ�WHUP� GHEW�
REOLJDWLRQV� LQ� ����� DQG� ������ DV� ZHOO� DV� WKH� LPSDFW� RI� FKDQJHV� LQ� QHW� SHQVLRQ�23(%� OLDELOLW\� GXH� WR�
LQYHVWPHQW�ORVVHV�LQ�WKH�SODQV¶�QHW�SRVLWLRQV�RI�������PLOOLRQ�LQ������DQG�LQYHVWPHQW�JDLQV�LQ�WKH�SODQV��QHW�
SRVLWLRQV�RI�������PLOOLRQ��

�

�



+XUOH\�0HGLFDO�&HQWHU��
0DQDJHPHQW¶V�'LVFXVVLRQ�DQG�$QDO\VLV��&RQWLQXHG��

� 

2SHUDWLQJ�5HVXOWV�DQG�&KDQJHV�LQ�WKH�0HGLFDO�&HQWHU
V�1HW�3RVLWLRQ��

,Q�������WKH�0HGLFDO�&HQWHU
V�QHW�SRVLWLRQ�LQFUHDVHG�E\�������PLOOLRQ��7KH�SULPDU\�FDXVH�RI�WKH�LQFUHDVH�LQ�
QHW�SRVLWLRQ�LV�WKH�SRVLWLYH�ILQDQFLDO�UHVXOWV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�-XQH�����������

� � ����� � � ����� � � ����� �
2SHUDWLQJ�5HYHQXH� � � �
1HW�SDWLHQW�VHUYLFH�UHYHQXH� � �� �������� �� ��������� �� ���������
2WKHU�RSHUDWLQJ�UHYHQXH� � � �������� � �������� � ��������

7RWDO�RSHUDWLQJ�UHYHQXH� � � ��������� � ��������� � ���������

2SHUDWLQJ�([SHQVHV� � � �
6DODULHV�DQG�ZDJHV� � � ��������� � ��������� � ���������
(PSOR\HH�EHQHILWV�DQG�SD\UROO�WD[HV� � � ������� � ������� � ��������
2SHUDWLQJ�VXSSOLHV�DQG�H[SHQVHV� � � ������� � ������� � ��������
3URIHVVLRQDO�VHUYLFHV� � � �������� � �������� � ��������
3XUFKDVHG�VHUYLFHV�DQG�RWKHU� � � �������� � �������� � ��������
'HSUHFLDWLRQ�DQG�DPRUWL]DWLRQ� � � �������� � �������� � ��������

7RWDO�RSHUDWLQJ�H[SHQVHV� � � ��������� � ��������� � ���������

1RQRSHUDWLQJ�5HYHQXH��([SHQVHV�� � � ������� � ��������� � ���������

([FHVV�RI�5HYHQXH�2YHU�([SHQVHV�%HIRUH�2WKHU�
$FWLYLW\� � �������� � ������� � ��������

*UDQWV��&RQWULEXWLRQV��DQG�(QGRZPHQWV��� � � �
5HVWULFWHG�JLIWV��LQFRPH��DQG�WUDQVIHU�WR�
XQUHVWULFWHG� � ��������� � ��������� � ����

,QFUHDVH�LQ�1HW�3RVLWLRQ� � � ������� � ������ � �������

1HW�3RVWLRQ�±�%HJLQQLQJ�RI�\HDU� ������� ������� �������

,PSOHPHQWDWLRQ�RI�*$6%�1R����� �������������������������� � ���������� ��������������������������

1HW�3RVLWLRQ���(QG�RI�\HDU� �� �������� �� �������� �� ��������
�
2SHUDWLQJ�,QFRPH��

)RU�WKH�\HDU�HQGLQJ�-XQH�����������WKH�0HGLFDO�&HQWHU�H[SHULHQFHG�D�QHW�LQFRPH�IURP�RSHUDWLRQV�RI�������
PLOOLRQ��7KH�FRPSDUDEOH�SULRU�SHULRG�RSHUDWLQJ�LQFRPH�ZDV�������PLOOLRQ��
�



+XUOH\�0HGLFDO�&HQWHU��
0DQDJHPHQW¶V�'LVFXVVLRQ�DQG�$QDO\VLV��&RQWLQXHG��

� 

,QSDWLHQW�DFWLYLW\�GHFUHDVHG�IURP�WKH�SULRU�\HDU�E\������IRU�GLVFKDUJHV�DQG�SDWLHQW�GD\V�UHPDLQHG�VWHDG\��
KRZHYHU�OHQJWK�RI�VWD\�WR�LQFUHDVHG�WR������GD\V���7KH�LQFUHDVH�LQ�WKH�OHQJWK�RI�VWD\�UHVXOWHG�IURP�0HGLFDUH�
&0,��FDVH�PL[�LQGH[��LQFUHDVH�E\������RU������YHUVXV������LQ�WKH�SUHYLRXV�\HDU���7KH�0HGLFDO�&HQWHU¶V�
LQSDWLHQW�PDUNHW� VKDUH�KDV� UHPDLQHG�VWURQJ�DV� UHIOHFWHG� LQ� WKH�0LFKLJDQ�+RVSLWDO�$VVRFLDWLRQ¶V�PDUNHW�
DQDO\VLV��VKRZLQJ�WKH�0HGLFDO�&HQWHU¶V�OHDG�LQ�PDUNHW�VKDUH�IRU�WKH�ODVW����SXEOLVKHG�TXDUWHUV���2XWSDWLHQW�
YROXPH�ZDV������XS�DV�FRPSDUHG�WR�WKH�SUHYLRXV�\HDU���(PHUJHQF\�5RRP�YLVLWV�ZHUH�GRZQ������SULPDULO\�
GXH�WR�PRUH�XUJHQW�FDUH�FHQWHUV�RSHQLQJ�DV�ZHOO�DV�SULPDU\�FDUH�SK\VLFLDQ�RIILFHV�H[WHQGLQJ�FOLQLFDO�KRXUV���
2XWSDWLHQW� VXUJHULHV� LQFUHDVHG� DV� D� UHVXOW� RI� DGYDQFHV� LQ� VXUJLFDO� SURFHGXUHV� WKDW� WUDGLWLRQDOO\� ZHUH�
LQSDWLHQW�����2WKHU�RSHUDWLQJ�UHYHQXH�LQFUHDVHG�IURP�WKH�SULRU�\HDU�DV�D�UHVXOW�RI�WKH�VDOH�RI�VRPH�RXWSDWLHQW�
ODERUDWRU\�RSHUDWLRQV��
�
2SHUDWLQJ�H[SHQVHV�LQFUHDVHG�E\������IURP�WKH�SULRU�\HDU��,QFUHDVHV�LQ�WKH�RXWSDWLHQW�YLVLWV�ODUJHO\�GURYH�
WKH�SURSRUWLRQDWH�LQFUHDVH�LQ�RSHUDWLQJ�H[SHQVH��VSHFLILFDOO\�LQ�VDODULHV�DQG�ZDJHV��HPSOR\HH�EHQHILWV�DQG�
SD\UROO� WD[HV��DQG�SXUFKDVHG�VHUYLFHV�IRU�RXWVLGH�DJHQFLHV��2WKHU�QRWDEOH�RSHUDWLQJ�H[SHQVH�LQFUHDVHV�
LQFOXGHG�SHQVLRQ�H[SHQVH�DQG�PDOSUDFWLFH�H[SHQVH���3HQVLRQ�H[SHQVH�LQFUHDVHG�DV�D�UHVXOW�RI�GRZQWXUQ�
LQ� WKH� LQYHVWPHQW� PDUNHW� GXULQJ� WKH� ILQDO� TXDUWHU� RI� WKH� PHDVXUHPHQW� SHULRG�� � 0DOSUDFWLFH� H[SHQVH�
LQFUHDVHG�GXH�WR�RQH�WLPH�ODUJH�FODLP�VHWWOHPHQWV��

1RQRSHUDWLQJ�5HYHQXHV�DQG�([SHQVHV�

1RQ�RSHUDWLQJ�UHYHQXHV�FRQVLVW�SULPDULO\�RI�LQYHVWPHQW�HDUQLQJV�RQ�FDVK�EDODQFHV��MRLQW�YHQWXUH�LQFRPH�
DQG�LQWHUHVW�H[SHQVH�RQ�RXWVWDQGLQJ�ORQJ�WHUP�GHEW���1RQ�RSHUDWLQJ�UHYHQXH�H[SHQVH�LPSURYHG�E\������
PLOOLRQ�RYHU� WKH�SULRU�\HDU� ODUJHO\�GXH�WR� LQYHVWPHQW� LQFRPH�� � ,QWHUHVW�H[SHQVH�ZDV���������� OHVV�DV�D�
UHVXOW� RI� SD\LQJ� RII� GHEW�� � ,QWHUHVW� LQFRPH� ZDV� IDYRUDEOH� GXH� WR� KLJKHU� UDWHV�� � 7KH� 0HGLFDO� &HQWHU¶V�
LQYHVWPHQW�SROLF\�LV�UHVWULFWHG�E\�WKH�6WDWH�RI�0LFKLJDQ�ODZ�3XEOLF�$FW�����ZKLFK�UHVWULFWV�LQYHVWPHQWV�WR�86�
EDFNHG�JRYHUQPHQWDO�VHFXULWLHV��

&DSLWDO�$VVHW�DQG�'HEW�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ���

7KH�0HGLFDO�&HQWHU�KDG������PLOOLRQ�LQYHVWHG�LQ�FDSLWDO�DVVHWV��QHW�RI�DFFXPXODWHG�GHSUHFLDWLRQ��DV�GHWDLOHG�
LQ� IRRWQRWH� �� WR� WKH� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV�� 7KHUH� ZDV� ������ PLOOLRQ� RI� EXLOGLQJ� LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�� FOLQLFDO�
HTXLSPHQW�DQG�WHFKQRORJ\�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�DVVHWV�SXUFKDVHG�LQ��������$W�\HDU�HQG��WKH�0HGLFDO�&HQWHU�KDG�
����PLOOLRQ�LQ�UHYHQXH�ERQGV�RXWVWDQGLQJ��

&RQWDFWLQJ�WKH�0HGLFDO�&HQWHU
V�)LQDQFLDO�0DQDJHPHQW��

7KLV�ILQDQFLDO�UHSRUW�LV�GHVLJQHG�WR�SURYLGH�RXU�FRQVWLWXHQWV�ZLWK�D�JHQHUDO�RYHUYLHZ�RI�WKH�0HGLFDO�&HQWHU¶V�
ILQDQFHV��,I�\RX�KDYH�DQ\�TXHVWLRQV�DERXW�WKLV�UHSRUW�RU�QHHG�DGGLWLRQDO�ILQDQFLDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ��FRQWDFW�WKH�
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Hurley Medical Center

Proprietary Funds 
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

 Hurley Medical
Center

Component
Unit Hurley

Health
Services

 Hurley Medical
Center

Component
Unit Hurley

Health
Services

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 73,737,272 $ 1,820,942 $ 55,487,102 $ 1,397,994
Patient accounts receivable - Net (Note 5) 44,716,234 1,246,090 34,758,619 1,408,585
Other receivables 6,367,498 1,825,686 8,679,450 904,093
Estimated third-party payor

settlements (Note 4) 17,895,969 - 18,433,856 -
Assets limited as to use (Note 6) 8,555,700 156,508 8,366,047 156,352
Inventory 5,790,256 24,954 5,378,220 39,787
Prepaid expenses and other 3,441,697 306,479 3,826,585 300,398

Total current assets 160,504,626 5,380,659 134,929,879 4,207,209

Assets Limited as to Use (Note 6)
Held by trustee - Bond 7,905,664 - 8,092,391 -
Restricted and held in trust - Other 14,360,136 - 19,623,451 -
By the board 128,327,467 - 121,193,090 -

Capital Assets - Net (Note 7) 103,894,340 939,935 103,751,019 1,820,503

Other Assets - Investment in joint ventures 6,826,375 42,000 6,325,250 42,000

Total assets 421,818,608 6,362,594 393,915,080 6,069,712

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows related to bond defeasance 288,012 - 403,719 -
Deferred outflows related to consideration

paid for assets 350,000 960,201 350,000 965,871
Deferred outflows related to

pensions (Note 19) 38,325,585 - 13,619,567 -

Total deferred outflows of
resources 38,963,597 960,201 14,373,286 965,871

Total assets and deferred
outflows of resources $ 460,782,205 $ 7,322,795 $ 408,288,366 $ 7,035,583

See notes to financial statements. 7



Hurley Medical Center

Proprietary Funds 
Statement of Net Position (Continued)

June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

 Hurley Medical
Center

Component
Unit Hurley

Health
Services

 Hurley Medical
Center

Component
Unit Hurley

Health
Services

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Net Position

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and taxes withheld $ 19,811,665 $ 625,179 $ 16,967,191 $ 442,884
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 8) 6,380,000 68,820 6,078,809 150,820
Estimated third-party payor

settlements (Note 4) 17,203,163 - 22,159,283 -
Accrued expenses 37,112,777 2,055,294 32,211,625 1,339,612

Total current liabilities 80,507,605 2,749,293 77,416,908 1,933,316

Long-term Debt - Net of current portion (Note 8) 66,244,910 312,376 72,643,542 784,091

Other Long-term Liabilities
Net pension liability (Note 19) 195,173,840 - 147,720,541 -
Other (Note 15) 22,007,188 - 23,359,613 -
Accrued postretirement benefit

obligations (Note 13) 23,316,745 - 28,254,589 -

Total liabilities 387,250,288 3,061,669 349,395,193 2,717,407

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows related to postemployment

benefit obligations (Note 13) 6,699,321 - 4,327,231 -
Deferred inflows related to

pensions (Note 19) 4,730,859 - 9,992,394 -

Total deferred inflows of
resources 11,430,180 - 14,319,625 -

Total liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources 398,680,468 3,061,669 363,714,818 2,717,407

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 35,576,590 558,739 29,429,460 885,592
Restricted - Donor restricted for specific

capital and operating activities 5,463,084 - 6,658,212 -
Unrestricted 21,062,063 3,702,387 8,485,876 3,432,584

Total net position 62,101,737 4,261,126 44,573,548 4,318,176

Total liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources, and
net position $ 460,782,205 $ 7,322,795 $ 408,288,366 $ 7,035,583

See notes to financial statements. 8



Hurley Medical Center

Proprietary Funds 
Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Hurley Medical
Center

Component Unit
Hurley Health

Services
Hurley Medical

Center

Component Unit
Hurley Health

Services

Operating Revenue
Net patient service revenue $ 415,316,681 $ 5,836,105 $ 394,624,387 $ 6,656,374
Other operating revenue 44,446,590 30,181,753 40,274,038 29,401,335

Total operating revenue 459,763,271 36,017,858 434,898,425 36,057,709

Operating Expenses
Salaries and wages 175,900,424 27,304,806 171,031,548 26,436,408
Employee benefits and payroll taxes 73,164,263 4,571,886 65,014,142 4,449,293
Operating supplies and expenses 63,613,588 - 62,763,259 -
Professional services and consultant fees 65,233,147 495,692 63,455,926 708,716
Purchased services and other 54,760,310 3,543,560 46,427,810 4,071,936
Depreciation and amortization 13,780,372 142,180 14,533,335 154,739

Total operating expenses 446,452,104 36,058,124 423,226,020 35,821,092

Operating Income (Loss) 13,311,167 (40,266) 11,672,405 236,617

Nonoperating Income (Expense)
Investment income (loss) 8,698,332 256 (414,174) 966
Other income (expense) 501,125 (17,040) (4,313) 15,542
Interest expense (4,456,602) - (4,742,453) -

Total nonoperating income
(expense) 4,742,855 (16,784) (5,160,940) 16,508

Excess of Revenue Over (Under) Expenses before
Other Activity, Restricted Fund Activity, and
Transfer of Funds 18,054,022 (57,050) 6,511,465 253,125

Other - Transfers to unrestricted from restricted funds
for the purchase of capital assets 669,305 - 222,268 -

Excess of Revenue Over (Under) Expenses before
Restricted Fund Activity and Transfer of Funds 18,723,327 (57,050) 6,733,733 253,125

Restricted Fund Activity and Transfer of Funds (525,833) - (1,247,702) -

Transfer to Unrestricted Net Position - Purchase of
capital assets (669,305) - (222,268) -

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 17,528,189 (57,050) 5,263,763 253,125

Net Position - Beginning of year 44,573,548 4,318,176 39,309,785 4,065,051

Net Position - End of year $ 62,101,737 $ 4,261,126 $ 44,573,548 $ 4,318,176

See notes to financial statements. 9



Hurley Medical Center

Proprietary Funds 
Statement of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Hurley Medical
Center

Component Unit
Hurley Health

Services
Hurley Medical

Center

Component Unit
Hurley Health

Services

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from patients and third-party

payors $ 446,504,248 $ 35,745,426 $ 408,394,213 $ 35,486,496
Cash payments to suppliers for services and

goods (235,275,206) (7,430,397) (237,009,013) (8,906,192)
Cash payments to employees for services (175,900,424) (27,321,590) (171,031,548) (26,436,408)

Net cash provided by operating
activities 35,328,618 993,439 353,652 143,896

Cash Flows Provided by Noncapital Financing
Activities - Net proceeds from contributions
restricted for specific purposes 669,305 - 222,268 -

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing
Activities

Principal payment on long-term debt and capital
leases (6,078,810) (553,715) (6,282,103) (145,050)

Decrease in loans receivable - - - 72,990
Interest paid on long-term debt (4,682,566) - (4,951,555) -
Purchase of capital assets (14,506,206) (16,620) (14,305,252) (56,869)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 582,513 - 9,154 108,638

Net cash used in capital and
related financing activities (24,685,069) (570,335) (25,529,756) (20,291)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
(Gain) loss from joint venture activity (501,125) - 8,960 -
Sale of assets whose use is limited 15,995,554 - 6,060,672 -
Purchases of assets whose use is limited (12,675,339) - (4,148,381) -
Investment interest and realized gains (losses) 4,118,226 (156) (764,959) 3,352

Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities 6,937,316 (156) 1,156,292 3,352

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash
Equivalents 18,250,170 422,948 (23,797,544) 126,957

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of year 55,487,102 1,397,994 79,284,646 1,271,037

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of year $ 73,737,272 $ 1,820,942 $ 55,487,102 $ 1,397,994

See notes to financial statements. 10



Hurley Medical Center

Proprietary Funds 
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Hurley Medical
Center

Component Unit
Hurley Health

Services
Hurley Medical

Center

Component Unit
Hurley Health

Services

A reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash from operating activities is as follows:

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash from Operating Activities

Operating income (loss) $ 13,311,167 $ (40,266) $ 11,672,405 $ 236,617
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)

to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 13,780,372 142,180 14,533,334 154,739
Provision for bad debts 11,469,241 91,973 13,082,627 88,200
Amortization of bond discounts (18,631) - (33,659) -
Contributions released from restrictions (1,195,128) - (1,468,093) -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Receivables and third-party payor
settlements (23,533,137) (917,544) (38,118,746) (1,097,760)

Inventories (412,036) 14,833 (243,965) 19,276
Prepaid expenses and other 384,888 (11,751) (494,252) 998,113
Deferred outflows of resources (24,590,311) 5,670 27,237,236 (965,871)
Accounts payable and taxes withheld 2,844,474 1,174 (1,539,938) 30,353
Accrued expenses 3,661,709 1,707,170 (2,048,395) 680,229
Net pension liability 47,453,299 - (27,021,602) -
Net OPEB liability (4,937,844) - (6,586,870) -
Deferred inflows of resources (2,889,445) - 11,383,570 -

Net cash provided by operating
activities $ 35,328,618 $ 993,439 $ 353,652 $ 143,896

See notes to financial statements. 11



Hurley Medical Center

Fiduciary Fund 
Statement of Net Position

Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund
June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,666,151 $ 2,291,214
Investments:

Common stock 35,351,082 33,517,301
Corporate bonds 13,610,016 13,429,298
U.S. government or agency bonds 7,060,657 7,849,993
U.S. government collateralized mortgage obligations 8,850,522 7,278,225

Interest receivable 208,260 185,678

Total assets $ 68,746,688 $ 64,551,709

Liabilities and Net Position

Other Long-term Liabilities $ - $ 1,321,405

Net Position - Held in trust for retiree health benefits 68,746,688 63,230,304

Total liabilities and net position $ 68,746,688 $ 64,551,709

See notes to financial statements. 12



Hurley Medical Center

Fiduciary Fund 
Statement of Changes in Net Position

Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund
Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Additions
Contributions - Employer $ 3,841,324 $ 3,884,465
Contributions - Retiree 2,146,974 2,052,750

Total contributions 5,988,298 5,937,215

Dividends 1,539,830 1,443,931
Realized gain on sale of investments 3,242,211 2,467,868
Net increase in fair value of investments 768,406 731,875
Less investment expenses (398,057) (446,022)

Total additions 11,140,688 10,134,867

Deductions - Benefit payments (5,624,304) (6,567,031)

Increase in Net Position 5,516,384 3,567,836

Net Position - Beginning of year 63,230,304 59,662,468

Net Position - End of year $ 68,746,688 $ 63,230,304

See notes to financial statements. 13



Hurley Medical Center

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018

Note 1 - Nature of Business
Hurley Medical Center (the "Medical Center") is an enterprise fund of the City of Flint, Michigan. The
Medical Center provides inpatient, outpatient, and emergency care services in Genesee and the
surrounding counties. As an instrumentality of a political subdivision of the State of Michigan, as described
in Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code, the Medical Center is exempt from federal income taxes.

The City of Flint Hospital Building Authority (the "Authority") is a blended component unit of the Medical
Center and the City of Flint, Michigan. The Authority serves only the Medical Center by facilitating the
issuance of debt for certain capital improvements and equipment via a lease contract. In accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, the lease transactions between the Medical Center and the
Authority have been eliminated, and all debt and related assets have been recorded in the Medical
Center's basic financial statements.

Hurley Health Services (HHS), a support organization to the Medical Center and a municipal entity, is a
Michigan nonprofit directorship corporation and is a blended component unit. HHS provides services
almost entirely to the Medical Center. HHS, on a consolidated basis, is composed of two nonprofit entities
(HHS and The Hurley Clinics (THC)) and one “for-profit” corporation (Hurley Practice Management
Services (HPMS)). Separate financial statements for HHS may be obtained by contacting HHS.

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies
Proprietary Fund Accounting 

The Medical Center utilizes the full accrual method of accounting, whereby revenue and expenses are
recognized on the accrual basis.

Fiduciary Fund Accounting 

The Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund accounts for the funding and expenditures related to providing
benefits to retirees. This fund accumulates resources for healthcare benefits financed by the Medical
Center. The fiduciary fund also utilizes the full accrual method of accounting.

Basis of Presentation 

The Medical Center follows Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments, in
the presentation of its financial statements. Under GASB Statement No. 34, the Medical Center is
classified as a special purpose government and is required to present statements for enterprise funds and
fiduciary funds.

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include investments in highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity of three
months or less, excluding amounts limited as to use by board designation or other arrangements under
trust agreements or with third-party payors. Cash balances held in the bank exceed the federal depository
insurance limit. The Medical Center’s cash is only insured up to the federal depository insurance limit. 

Assets Limited as to Use 

Assets limited as to use include the following:

� Assets set aside by the board of managers for identified purposes, over which the board retains
control, and may, at its discretion, subsequently use for other purposes

� Proceeds of debt issues and funds of the Medical Center deposited with a trustee and limited to use in
accordance with the requirements of a bond indenture
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Hurley Medical Center

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Investments and Investment Income 

The Medical Center accounts for its investments in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting
for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools. All investments are valued at their fair values
in the statement of net position except money market investments and interest-earning investment
contracts that have a remaining maturity of less than one year at the time of purchase. These investments
are carried at amortized cost. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the statement of revenue,
expenses, and changes in net position as nonoperating revenue - investment income.

Investment income on proceeds of borrowings that are held by a trustee, to the extent not capitalized, and
investment income on assets deposited in the self-insurance trust are reported as other operating
revenue. Investment income from all other investments and investment income of endowment funds are
reported as nonoperating revenue.

Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable for patients, insurance companies, and governmental agencies are based on gross
charges. An allowance for uncollectible accounts is established on an aggregate basis by using historical
loss rate factors applied to unpaid accounts based on aging. Loss rate factors are based on historical loss
experience and adjusted for economic conditions and other trends affecting the Medical Center's ability to
collect outstanding amounts. Uncollectible amounts are written off against the allowance for doubtful
accounts in the period they are determined to be uncollectible. An allowance for contractual adjustments
and interim payment advances is based on expected payment rates from payors based on current
reimbursement methodologies. This amount also includes amounts received as interim payments against
unpaid claims by certain payors.

Inventories 

Inventories, which consist of medical and office supplies and pharmaceutical products, are stated at cost,
determined on a first-in, first-out basis or market.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net position
that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure)
until then.

The Medical Center reports deferred outflows related to the defeasance loss associated with defeased
debt, which is capitalized and amortized over the life of the new debt; consideration paid for assets
acquired in a clinic acquisition; and deferred outflows related to the defined benefit plan, made up of
employer contributions made subsequent to the measurement date, the variance between the plan's
actual investment earnings compared to the plan's assumed investment earnings, and the changes in
actuarial assumptions.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position
that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

The Medical Center reports deferred inflows related to the OPEB plan, made up of differences between
projected and actual earnings on investments, differences between the projected and actual experiences,
and changes in actuarial assumptions and deferred inflows related to the defined benefit plan, made up of
differences between projected and actual earnings on investments and differences between the projected
and actual experiences. 
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Hurley Medical Center

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Capital Assets 

Capital assets are defined by the Medical Center as assets with an initial individual cost of more than
$5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at cost. Donated
capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation. Interest incurred during the
construction of capital assets is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Depreciable Life -
Years

Land improvements 5 to 25
Buildings 5 to 50
Machinery and equipment 2 to 20
Automotive equipment 2 to 10

Compensated Absences 

The Medical Center's employees earn vacation days at varying rates depending on years of service and
job classification. Employees may accumulate vacation days up to a specified maximum. The Medical
Center's policy is to accrue such unpaid vacation days as they are earned. The amount of vacation days
payable is reported as a current liability.

Employees of the Medical Center generally are eligible for receiving a portion of unused sick leave
benefits only upon retirement, death, or duty-related disability. The Medical Center's policy is to recognize
these sick leave benefits at the time an employee becomes vested for retirement, duty-related disability, or
in the case of death. The estimated amount of sick leave payable for employees meeting these
requirements is reported as a current liability.

Certain employee groups, however, are eligible to receive a portion of unused sick leave benefits on an
annual basis. The Medical Center's policy is to accrue such unpaid sick leave benefits as they are earned.
The estimated amount of sick leave payable for employees eligible to receive a portion of unused sick
leave benefits on an annual basis is reported as a current liability.

Estimated Self-insured Malpractice Costs 

The provision for estimated self-insured medical malpractice claims includes estimates of the ultimate
costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported. The estimate for claims incurred but
not reported is based on an actuarial determination.

Classification of Net Position 

Net position of the Medical Center is classified based on the presence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions. Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation
and is reduced by the current balances of any outstanding borrowings used to finance the purchase or
construction of those assets. The restricted component of net position consists of restricted assets
reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. Unrestricted net position is
the remaining net position that does not meet the definition of invested in capital or restricted. 
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Hurley Medical Center

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Net Patient Service Revenue 

Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients and third-
party payors for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement
agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the
period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are
determined. Approximately 85 and 88 percent of the Medical Center's revenue is based on participation in
the Blue Cross/Blue Shield, Medicare, and Medicaid programs for the years ended June 30, 2019 and
2018, respectively.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation. Management believes that it is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. Final
determination of compliance of such laws and regulations is subject to future government review and
interpretation. Violations may result in significant regulatory action, including fines, penalties, and
exclusions from the Medicare and Medicaid programs.

Electronic Health Records Incentive Payments 

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) established funding in order to provide
incentive payments to hospitals and physicians that implement the use of electronic health record (EHR)
technology by 2014. The Medical Center may receive an incentive payment for up to four years, provided
the Medical Center demonstrates meaningful use of certified EHR technology for the EHR reporting
period. The revenue from the incentive payments is recognized ratably over the EHR reporting period
when there is reasonable assurance that the Medical Center will comply with eligibility requirements during
the EHR reporting period and an incentive payment will be received. 

The amounts are recorded within other operating revenue, as the incentive payments are related to the
Medical Center’s and physician's ongoing and central activities, yet not critical to the delivery of patient
service. During fiscal years 2019 and 2018, the Medical Center received and recorded approximately
$500,000 and $700,000, respectively, of incentive payments in other operating revenue.

Operating Revenue and Expenses 

The Medical Center's statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position distinguishes between
operating and nonoperating revenue and expenses. Operating revenue results from exchange
transactions associated with providing healthcare services, the Medical Center's principal activity.
Operating expenses are all expenses incurred to provide healthcare services, other than financing costs.

Restricted Resources 

When the Medical Center has both restricted and unrestricted resources available to finance a particular
program, it is the Medical Center's policy to use restricted resources before unrestricted resources.

Income Taxes 

The Medical Center and HHS are exempt from income taxes except for HHS' subsidiary, HPMS. A
provision for income taxes (at statutory rates) has been provided in the basic financial statements related
to this entity's transactions.

Nonoperating Revenue and Expenses 

The Medical Center categorizes joint ventures, investment income, interest expense, and operations that
the Medical Center does not directly oversee as nonoperating activities. Interest expense is charged to
nonoperating expense as incurred, except that interest on funds borrowed for major construction projects
is capitalized as a component of the cost of the related projects during the period that the borrowed funds
are owed.
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Hurley Medical Center

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Reclassification 

Certain 2018 amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2019 presentation.

Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

New and Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements 

In November 2016, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 83, Certain
Asset Retirement Obligations, which establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of
recognition of a liability and a corresponding deferred outflow of resources for asset retirement obligations.
The provisions of this statement were effective for the year ended June 30, 2019. No asset retirement
obligations have been recorded as a part of the adoption of this standard.

In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This statement establishes
criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. An activity meeting the criteria
should be reported in a fiduciary fund in the basic financial statements. The Medical Center is currently
evaluating the impact this standard will have on the basic financial statements when adopted. The
provisions of this statement are effective for the Medical Center's basic financial statements for the year
ending June 30, 2020.

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases, which improves accounting and financial
reporting for leases by governments. This statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and
liabilities for leases that were previously classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of
resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single
model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to
use an underlying asset. Under this statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an
intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred
inflow of resources. After review of its current leases, the Medical Center believes the new lease standard
will have a significant effect on the Medical Center's statement of net position. The effects on the results of
operations are not expected to be significant, as recognition and measurement of expenses and cash
flows for leases will be substantially the same under the new standard. The provisions of this statement
are effective for the Medical Center's basic financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2021.

In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of
a Construction Period, which simplifies accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of construction
and requires those costs to be expensed in the period incurred.  As a result, interest cost incurred before
the end of a construction period will not be capitalized and included in the historical cost of a capital asset
reported in a business-type activity or enterprise fund. This statement also reiterates that, in financial
statements prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus, interest cost incurred
before the end of a construction period should be recognized as an expenditure on a basis consistent with
governmental fund accounting principles. The requirements of the standard will be applied prospectively
and result in increased interest expense during periods of construction. The provisions of this statement
are effective for the Medical Center's financial statements for the June 30, 2021 fiscal year.

In August 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests. This statement improves
the consistency and comparability of reporting a government's majority equity interest in a legally separate
organization and improves the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units.
The Medical Center is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements
when adopted for the year ending June 30, 2020.
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Hurley Medical Center

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018

Note 3 - Charity Care
The Medical Center provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy without
charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Medical Center does not pursue
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as revenue. Charity care
is determined based on established policies, using patient income and assets to determine payment
ability. The amount reflects the cost of free or discounted health services, net of contributions and other
revenue received, as direct assistance for the provision of charity care. The estimated cost of providing
charity services is based on data derived from the Medical Center's cost accounting system using the ratio
of cost to charges. The Medical Center estimates that it provided $15,300,000 and $11,700,000 of
services to indigent patients during 2019 and 2018, respectively. The Medical Center estimates costs and
expenses incurred to provide charity care totaled $4,800,000 and $3,500,000 during 2019 and 2018,
respectively. Charity care patients made up approximately 1.07 percent and 0.83 percent of all patients
during 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Note 4 - Net Patient Service Revenue
The Medical Center has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the Medical
Center at amounts different from its established rates. A summary of the payment arrangements with
major third-party payors is as follows:

Medicare

Inpatient, acute-care services rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries are paid at prospectively
determined rates per discharge. These rates vary according to a patient classification system based on
clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. Most outpatient services are paid on an ambulatory payment
classification system or fee schedule methodology. Inpatient, nonacute services and medical education
costs related to Medicare beneficiaries are paid based on a cost-reimbursement methodology subject to
certain limitations.

Medicaid

Inpatient, acute-care services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are also paid at prospectively
determined rates per discharge. Outpatient services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are paid
on an ambulatory payment classification system or a fee schedule methodology. Capital costs are paid on
a cost-reimbursement method. The Medical Center participates in a Quality Assurance Assessment
Program through the State of Michigan. The amounts paid and received under this program are netted
and reported in net patient service revenue.

Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Michigan

Inpatient, acute-care services are reimbursed at prospectively determined rates per discharge. These
rates are based on the Medicare patient classification system and on hospital-specific costs. Outpatient
services are reimbursed on a fee-for-service basis.

Health Maintenance Organization (HMO)/Preferred Provider Organization (PPO)

Services rendered to HMO and PPO beneficiaries are paid at predetermined rates or at a percentage of
hospital charges.

Cost report settlements result from the adjustment of interim payments to final reimbursement under the
Medicare, Medicaid, and Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Michigan programs and are subject to audit by fiscal
intermediaries. The Medical Center recognized increases totaling approximately $1,934,000 in net patient
service revenue during the year ended June 30, 2019 as a result of unfavorable and favorable changes to
prior year settlement estimates and activity. No such change was recognized for the year ended June 30,
2018.
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Note 5 - Patient Accounts Receivable
Patient accounts receivable at June 30, 2019 and 2018 and revenue for the years then ended include
estimated amounts due from various third-party payors, which are computed in accordance with their
respective reimbursement formulas.

In addition, the Medical Center has established an estimated allowance for uncollectible accounts of
approximately $9,000,000 and $8,000,000 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.  

The Medical Center grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents and
are insured under third-party payor agreements. The composition of receivables from patients and third-
party payors was as follows:

2019 2018

Medicare %25 %27
Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Michigan 9 11
Medicaid 43 39
Other third-party payors 18 17
Self-pay 5 6

Total %100 %100

Note 6 - Assets Limited as to Use
Assets limited as to use that are required for obligations classified as current liabilities are reported in
current assets and are composed of cash and cash equivalents. Assets limited as to use consist of the
following at June 30:

2019 2018

Held by trustee - Bond:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 15,096,624 $ 12,829,183
U.S. government securities (cost was $1,350,374 and $3,669,119

for 2019 and 2018, respectively) 1,330,802 3,587,756
Accrued interest receivable 33,938 41,499
Less assets required for current liabilities (8,555,700) (8,366,047)

      Total held by trustee - Bond $ 7,905,664 $ 8,092,391

Board designated:
By board for funded depreciation and capital improvements:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 284,797 $ 323,325
U.S. government securities (cost was $30,852,619 and

$30,232,033 for 2019 and 2018, respectively) 31,274,055 29,508,942
Accrued interest receivable 158,837 117,666

By board for operations:
Cash and cash equivalents 837,621 1,166,217
U.S. government securities (cost of $94,049,105 and

$92,242,770 for 2019 and 2018, respectively) 95,270,574 89,718,492
Accrued interest receivable 501,583 358,448

Total board designated $ 128,327,467 $ 121,193,090
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Note 6 - Assets Limited as to Use (Continued)
2019 2018

Held in trust - Self-insurance:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 514,609 $ 6,224,109
U.S. government securities (cost was $13,266,363 and $13,333,397

for 2019 and 2018, respectively) 13,423,712 12,973,274
Accrued interest receivable 82,018 55,412

Total held in trust - Self-insurance 14,020,339 19,252,795

Held in trust - Retirement - Cash and cash equivalents 8 491
Restricted assets - Cash and cash equivalents 339,789 370,165

Total restricted and held in trust - Other $ 14,360,136 $ 19,623,451

Note 7 - Capital Assets
The cost of capital assets and related accumulated depreciation for Hurley Medical Center for June 30,
2019 are summarized below:

2018 Additions
Disposals and

Transfers 2019

Assets not subject to depreciation:
Land $ 4,930,372 $ - $ - $ 4,930,372
Construction in progress 6,298,688 14,131,066 (12,316,181) 8,113,573

Total 11,229,060 14,131,066 (12,316,181) 13,043,945

Assets subject to depreciation:
Land improvements 3,428,144 138,829 (78,982) 3,487,991
Buildings 188,695,242 3,782,764 (2,508,549) 189,969,457
Machinery and equipment 124,503,495 8,400,310 (5,738,450) 127,165,355
Automotive equipment 265,310 - - 265,310

Total 316,892,191 12,321,903 (8,325,981) 320,888,113

Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements 1,693,303 251,053 (78,065) 1,866,291
Buildings 125,832,421 4,724,761 (2,508,549) 128,048,633
Machinery and equipment 96,663,382 8,780,548 (5,526,225) 99,917,705
Automotive equipment 181,126 23,963 - 205,089

Total 224,370,232 13,780,325 (8,112,839) 230,037,718

Net carrying amount $ 103,751,019 $ 12,672,644 $ (12,529,323) $ 103,894,340
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Note 7 - Capital Assets (Continued)
The cost of capital assets and related accumulated depreciation for Hurley Medical Center for June 30,
2018 are summarized below:

2017 Additions
Disposals and

Transfers 2018

Assets not subject to depreciation:
Land $ 4,930,372 $ - $ - $ 4,930,372
Construction in progress 10,439,426 14,352,333 (18,493,071) 6,298,688

Total 15,369,798 14,352,333 (18,493,071) 11,229,060

Assets subject to depreciation:
Land improvements 3,119,224 450,927 (142,007) 3,428,144
Buildings 181,394,419 8,876,377 (1,575,554) 188,695,242
Machinery and equipment 117,461,926 9,119,768 (2,078,199) 124,503,495
Automotive equipment 233,397 45,999 (14,086) 265,310

Total 302,208,966 18,493,071 (3,809,846) 316,892,191

Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements 1,601,151 234,157 (142,005) 1,693,303
Buildings 122,849,819 4,555,820 (1,573,218) 125,832,421
Machinery and equipment 88,966,435 9,721,249 (2,024,302) 96,663,382
Automotive equipment 173,104 22,109 (14,087) 181,126

Total 213,590,509 14,533,335 (3,753,612) 224,370,232

Net carrying amount $ 103,988,255 $ 18,312,069 $ (18,549,305) $ 103,751,019

Capital asset activity for Hurley Health Services for June 30, 2019 was as follows:

2018 Additions
Disposals and

Transfers 2019

Leasehold improvements $ 307,680 $ - $ (5,130) $ 302,550
Buildings 1,373,255 - (650,000) 723,255
Equipment and furnishings 1,219,539 16,620 (330,845) 905,314

Total 2,900,474 16,620 (985,975) 1,931,119

Less accumulated depreciation:
Leasehold improvements 179,739 11,497 (4,005) 187,231
Buildings 109,861 35,212 (148,950) (3,877)
Equipment and furnishings 790,371 90,879 (73,420) 807,830

Total 1,079,971 137,588 (226,375) 991,184

Net carrying amount $ 1,820,503 $ (120,968) $ (759,600) $ 939,935
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Note 7 - Capital Assets (Continued)
Capital asset activity for Hurley Health Services for June 30, 2018 was as follows:

2017 Additions
Disposals and

Transfers 2018

Leasehold improvements $ 305,472 $ 2,208 $ - $ 307,680
Buildings 1,373,255 - - 1,373,255
Equipment and furnishings 1,304,372 54,660 (139,493) 1,219,539

Total 2,983,099 56,868 (139,493) 2,900,474

Less accumulated depreciation:
Leasehold improvements 167,568 12,171 - 179,739
Buildings 74,649 35,212 - 109,861
Equipment and furnishings 729,412 107,356 (46,397) 790,371

Total 971,629 154,739 (46,397) 1,079,971

Net carrying amount $ 2,011,470 $ (97,871) $ (93,096) $ 1,820,503

Note 8 - Long-term Debt
Long-term debt activity for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 can be summarized as follows for the
Medical Center:

Business-Type Activities

2019
Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance

Due within One
Year

Bonds and contracts payable - 
Direct borrowings and direct

placements - Mortgage
payable

Series 2010 $ 31,715,000 $ - $ (500,000) $ 31,215,000 $ 500,000
Series 2011 413,810 - (413,810) - -
Series 2013A 21,940,000 - (15,000) 21,925,000 530,000
Series 2013B 25,010,000 - (5,150,000) 19,860,000 5,350,000

Total direct borrowings
and direct placements
principal outstanding 79,078,810 - (6,078,810) 73,000,000 6,380,000

Unamortized bond premiums 432,611 - (69,433) 363,178 -
Unamortized bond discounts (789,070) 50,802 - (738,268) -

Total business-type
activities long-term
debt $ 78,722,351 $ 50,802 $ (6,148,243) $ 72,624,910 $ 6,380,000
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Note 8 - Long-term Debt (Continued)
2018

Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance

Due within One
Year

Bonds and contracts payable - 
Direct borrowings and direct

placements - Mortgage
payable

Series 2010 $ 32,215,000 $ - $ (500,000) $ 31,715,000 $ 500,000
Series 2011 1,215,913 - (802,103) 413,810 413,809
Series 2013A 21,940,000 - - 21,940,000 15,000
Series 2013B 29,990,000 - (4,980,000) 25,010,000 5,150,000

Total direct borrowings
and direct placements
principal outstanding 85,360,913 - (6,282,103) 79,078,810 6,078,809

Unamortized bond premiums 517,887 - (85,276) 432,611 -
Unamortized bond discounts (840,687) 51,617 - (789,070) -

Total business-type
activities long-term
debt $ 85,038,113 $ 51,617 $ (6,367,379) $ 78,722,351 $ 6,078,809

Component Unit

Long-term debt activity for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 can be summarized as follows for
Hurley Health Services:

2019
Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance

Due within One
Year

Bonds and contracts payable - 
Direct borrowings and direct

placements - Mortgage
payable $ 876,707 $ - $ (512,630) $ 364,077 $ 51,701

Capital leases 58,204 - (41,085) 17,119 17,119

Total component unit
long-term debt $ 934,911 $ - $ (553,715) $ 381,196 $ 68,820
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Note 8 - Long-term Debt (Continued)
2018

Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance

Due within One
Year

Bonds and contracts payable - 
Direct borrowings and direct

placements - Mortgage
payable $ 980,672 $ - $ (103,965) $ 876,707 $ 109,735

Capital leases 99,289 - (41,085) 58,204 41,085

Total component unit
long-term debt $ 1,079,961 $ - $ (145,050) $ 934,911 $ 150,820

The Medical Center had deferred outflows of $288,012 and $403,719 related to deferred charges on bond
refundings at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the above bonds and note obligations are as follows:

Hurley Medical Center Hurley Health Services
Direct Borrowings and

Direct Placements
Direct Borrowings and

Direct Placements Other Debt
Years Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Principal Total

2020 $ 6,380,000 $ 4,051,700 $10,431,700 $ 51,701 $ 17,030 $ 17,119 $ 85,850
2021 7,025,000 3,710,225 10,735,225 54,346 14,385 - 68,731
2022 2,455,000 3,585,638 6,040,638 57,126 11,604 - 68,730
2023 2,580,000 3,454,613 6,034,613 60,049 8,681 - 68,730
2024 2,710,000 3,316,900 6,026,900 63,121 5,609 - 68,730

2025-2029 15,800,000 14,191,838 29,991,838 77,734 2,451 - 80,185
2030-2034 13,185,000 9,915,207 23,100,207 - - - -
2035-2039 18,380,000 4,327,880 22,707,880 - - - -

2040 4,485,000 - 4,485,000 - - - -

Total $73,000,000 $46,554,001 $119,554,001 $ 364,077 $ 59,760 $ 17,119 $ 440,956

Unused Line of Credit 

Hurley Health Services has an unused line of credit in the amount of $150,000 renewable on October 1 of
each year as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 that is collateralized by a certificate of deposit. 
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Note 8 - Long-term Debt (Continued)
Assets Pledged as Collateral

Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements 

The Medical Center’s outstanding revenue refunding bonds are payable from the revenue of the Medical
Center pursuant to lease/purchase agreements between the Medical Center and the City of Flint Hospital
Building Authority. Under terms of the lease/purchase agreements, the Medical Center transferred title to
substantially all of its facilities to the Authority and leases such facilities from the Authority. Ownership of
the facilities reverts to the Medical Center upon payment of the bonds. Rental payments to the Authority
are equal to the amounts required to make principal and interest payments on the bonds. Payments on
Series 2010 range from $500,000 in 2020 to $3,555,000 in 2040, plus interest from 5.84 to 7.5 percent
through 2040. Payments on Series 2013A range from $530,000 in 2020 to $930,000 in 2040, plus interest
from 5.0 to 5.25 percent. Payments on Series 2013B range from $5,350,000 in 2020 to $1,305,000 in
2029, plus interest ranging from 3.5 percent to 5.0 percent over the life of the bond.

The net revenue of the Medical Center is pledged for payment of principal and interest on the revenue
rental and revenue refunding bonds. Accordingly, the basic financial statements of the Medical Center
include the facilities as if owned by the Medical Center and the bonds as if issued by the Medical Center.

Significant Terms

Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements 

The outstanding 2013 Series bond lease agreement with the Authority includes certain financial covenants
that, if not met, require the hiring of a consultant. The Medical Center is not in default as a result of
violating the covenants unless the Medical Center fails to hire a consultant within 90 days of year end or if
days cash on hand falls below 35 days. 

Other Debt 

The outstanding lease purchase agreement contains certain restrictive covenants, including maintaining a
certain minimum debt service ratio and minimum days cash on hand.

During 2016, HHS entered into a mortgage note payable to acquire real property and a building in Lapeer,
Michigan. The mortgage note payable is due in monthly installment of $5,728, including interest of 5
percent. The mortgage note payable is collateralized by the building and real property and is due on
August 3, 2025.

Note 9 - Defined Contribution Pension Plan
The Medical Center has a defined contribution plan established under a City of Flint, Michigan ordinance
for employees who meet certain requirements as to date of hire. Contributions to the plan are 4.5 percent
of the employee's annual compensation. Each employee's interest is vested as specified in the plan.
Pension expense included in the statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position was
approximately $1,300,000 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018. The defined contribution plan is
no longer offered to employees hired after January 1, 2014.
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Note 10 - Profit-sharing and 403(b) Retirement Plan
HHS has a qualified 401(k) profit-sharing plan for HPMS employees. Eligible employees, those who have
attained the age of 21 and completed 90 days of service, may defer up to the federal pension law
limitations. HHS may make a discretionary contribution. HHS' contributions to the 401(k) plan were
approximately $80,000 and $77,000 for 2019 and 2018, respectively.

HHS also maintains two qualified deferred compensation plans under Section 403(b) of the Internal
Revenue Code. Under the plans, HHS and THC employees may elect to defer a percentage of their
salary, subject to the Internal Revenue Service limits. HHS may make a discretionary contribution. HHS'
contributions to the 403(b) plans amounted to approximately $475,000 and $482,000 for 2019 and 2018,
respectively. 

Note 11 - Leases
Hurley Medical Center and Hurley Health Services lease office space under various operating leases.
Certain operating leases contain rental escalation clauses that are based on prime rate at a future date
and purchase options at fair market value. Total rent expense under these leases for Hurley Medical
Center was approximately $640,000 and $660,000 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. Total rent expense under these leases for HHS was approximately $503,000 for the years
ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, including rental payments to the Medical Center of approximately $69,000
and $175,000 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

The following is a schedule of future minimum rental payments:

Years Ending
June 30

Hurley Medical
Center

Hurley Health
Services

2020 $ 1,324,164 $ 440,366
2021 1,221,665 411,183
2022 1,021,566 406,122
2023 999,258 402,987
2024 476,422 292,245

Thereafter 355,978 391,777

Total $ 5,399,053 $ 2,344,680

Note 12 - Asset Retirement Obligations
The Medical Center has buildings and various operating equipment. The Medical Center is required to
perform future asset retirement activities related to its buildings and operations equipment. The Medical
Center has an obligation related to the removal of asbestos and various diagnostic imaging radiation with
various buildings on campus upon reconstruction, demolition, or abandonment of the related buildings.
The Medical Center has not recorded a liability related to the potential costs associated with the
abatement, as the amount of the liability cannot currently be reasonably estimated. The Medical Center
currently has no plans or expectation of plans to undertake a major renovation that would require
significant abatement or demolition of the buildings. The Medical Center will recognize a liability in the
period when sufficient information is available to reasonably estimate the amount of the liability. At the
time of asset retirement, the Medical Center will be required to provide funding and financial assurance for
this liability through  insurance policies.
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Note 13 - Other Postemployment Benefit Plan
Plan Description

The Medical Center provides retiree health insurance premiums to eligible retirees and their spouses
through the Retiree Health Benefit Plan (the "Plan"). Retirees receive full or partial health insurance
coverage depending on the employee's date of employment and union affiliation. During the year ended
June 30, 2010, the Plan was amended to eliminate the full coverage benefits to those eligible employees.
Eligible retirees prior to December 31, 2009 were grandfathered into the Plan with full health insurance
benefits. The number of participants was 593 and 571 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The Plan's activity is accounted for in an irrevocable trust, and the activity is reported in the fiduciary fund
financial statements. The Plan is a single-employer defined benefit plan administered by the Medical
Center. The Plan does not issue a separate stand-alone financial statement.

Management of the Plan is vested in the pension board, which consists of seven members - three elected
by plan members, three appointed by the Medical Center, and the medical center treasurer, who serves
as an ex officio member.

Benefits Provided 

The healthcare benefits are provided by the Medical Center’s self-insurance plan. The third party that
administers the Retiree's Health Insurance Trust (RHI Trust) formulates an illustrative rate based on the
coverage provided. RHI Trust members receive full or partial health coverage (illustrative rate) depending
on the member’s date of employment and union affiliation. Those members who were employed by 1989
and retired on or before December 31, 2009 are eligible to receive full healthcare benefits. All other
members may receive a specified stipend that is used to offset the cost of the healthcare benefit
illustrative rate, and the retiree contributes the remainder. Once RHI Trust members reach the age 65, the
member’s coverage is converted to a fully insured product, and the stipend is reduced.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

The following members were covered by the benefit terms:

Retiree Health
Benefit Plan

Date of member count June 30, 2019

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 502
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 69
Active plan members 2,592

Total plan members 3,163

Contributions

The pension board establishes contribution rates based on an actuarially determined rate per a funding
valuation. For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Medical Center's contributions  were
$3,841,324 and $3,884,465, respectively. Employees are not required to contribute to the Plan.
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Note 13 - Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (Continued)
Net OPEB Liability 

The Medical Center has chosen to use the June 30 measurement date as its measurement date for the
net OPEB liability, and, therefore, the total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation
performed as of that date. The June 30, 2019 and 2018 fiscal year ends reported net OPEB liability was
determined using a measure of the total OPEB liability and the OPEB net position as of the June 30, 2019
and 2018 measurement date, respectively.

Changes in the net OPEB liability during the measurement year were as follows:

Increase (Decrease)

Changes in Net OPEB Liability
Total OPEB

Liability
Plan Net
Position

Net OPEB
Liability

Balance at July 1, 2018 $ 91,484,893 $ 63,230,304 $ 28,254,589

Changes for the year:
Service cost 753,386 - 753,386
Interest 6,083,297 - 6,083,297
Differences between expected and actual

experience (2,780,513) - (2,780,513)
Contributions - Employer - 3,841,324 (3,841,324)
Net investment income - 5,152,690 (5,152,690)
Benefit payments, including refunds (3,477,330) (3,477,330) -

Net changes 578,840 5,516,684 (4,937,844)

Balance at June 30, 2019 $ 92,063,733 $ 68,746,988 $ 23,316,745

The plan's fiduciary net position represents 74.67 percent of the total OPEB liability.

Changes in the net OPEB liability during the prior measurement year were as follows:

Increase (Decrease)

Changes in Net OPEB Liability
Total OPEB

Liability
Plan Net
Position

Net OPEB
Liability

Balance at July 1, 2017 $ 94,503,927 $ 59,662,468 $ 34,841,459

Changes for the year:
Service cost 735,528 - 735,528
Interest 6,251,484 - 6,251,484
Changes in benefits (643,385) - (643,385)
Differences between expected and actual

experience (3,012,210) - (3,012,210)
Changes in assumptions (1,836,169) - (1,836,169)
Contributions - Employer - 3,884,465 (3,884,465)
Net investment income - 4,197,653 (4,197,653)
Benefit payments, including refunds (4,514,282) (4,514,282) -

Net changes (3,019,034) 3,567,836 (6,586,870)

Balance at June 30, 2018 $ 91,484,893 $ 63,230,304 $ 28,254,589

The plan's fiduciary net position represents 69.12 percent of the total OPEB liability.
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Note 13 - Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (Continued)
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
OPEB

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Medical Center recognized OPEB expense of
$1,275,569 and $1,624,826, respectively. 

At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Medical Center reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

2019 2018
Deferred

Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of

Resources

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of

Resources

Difference between expected and
actual experience $ - $ 4,561,140 $ - $ 2,593,155

Changes in assumptions - 1,325,278 - 1,580,723
Net difference between projected

and actual earnings on OPEB
plan investments - 812,903 - 153,353

Total $ - $ 6,699,321 $ - $ 4,327,231

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Years Ending
June 30 Amount

2020 $ 1,280,784
2021 1,280,784
2022 1,280,784
2023 1,242,446
2024 1,067,974

Thereafter 546,549

Total $ 6,699,321

Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017. Updated
procedures were used to roll forward the total OPEB liability to the OPEB plan's fiscal year end of June 30,
2019 and 2018. The valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in
the measurement, unless otherwise specified.

Retiree Health
Benefit Plan

Inflation 2.75 percent
Salary increases (including inflation) N/A
Investment rate of return (net of investment expenses, including inflation) 6.75%
Healthcare cost trend rate 9.0 percent

decreasing to
3.25 percent

Mortality rates RP-2014
Mortality Table
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Note 13 - Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (Continued)
Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.75 percent as of June 30, 2019 and
2018. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that the medical center
contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those
assumptions, the RHI Trust’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments of current members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on RHI
Trust investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB
liability.

Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total OPEB liability. 

Investment Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
OPEB plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and adding expected inflation. Best estimates of
arithmetic real rates of return as of the June 30, 2019 and 2018 measurement dates for each major asset
class included in the OPEB plan's target asset allocation, as disclosed in the investment footnote, are
summarized in the following tables:

Asset Class Target Allocation

Long-term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

U.S. equities %40.00 %10.20
International equities 10.00 8.90
U.S. convertibles 10.00 8.60
U.S. fixed income 40.00 4.00

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Medical Center, calculated using the discount rate of
6.75 percent, as well as what the Medical Center's net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate as of June
30, 2019:

1 Percent
Decrease
(5.75%)

Current Discount
Rate

(6.75%)

1 Percent
Increase
(7.75%)

Net OPEB liability of the Retiree Health Benefit Plan $ 32,705,354 $ 23,316,745 $ 15,301,495

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Medical Center, calculated using the discount rate of
6.75 percent, as well as what the Medical Center's net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate as of June
30, 2018:

1 Percent
Decrease
(5.75%)

Current Discount
Rate (6.75%)

1 Percent
Increase
(7.75%)

Net OPEB liability of the Retiree Health Benefit Plan $ 37,584,168 $ 28,254,589 $ 20,289,734
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Note 13 - Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (Continued)
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Medical Center, calculated using the healthcare cost
trend rate of 9.00 percent decreasing to 3.25 percent, as well as what the Medical Center's net OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is 1 percentage point lower or
1 percentage point higher than the current rate as of June 30, 2019:

1 Percent
Decrease

Current
Healthcare Cost

Trend Rate
1 Percent
Increase

Net OPEB liability of the Retiree Health Benefit Plan $ 17,186,217 $ 23,316,745 $ 30,482,624

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Medical Center, calculated using the healthcare cost
trend rate of 9.00 percent decreasing to 3.25 percent, as well as what the Medical Center's net OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is 1 percentage point lower or
1 percentage point higher than the current rate as of June 30, 2018:

1 Percent
Decrease

Current
Healthcare Cost

Trend Rate
1 Percent
Increase

Net OPEB liability of the Retiree Health Benefit Plan $ 22,162,606 $ 28,254,589 $ 35,375,413

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

For the purpose of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the Plan’s fiduciary net position and
additions to/deductions from fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by the Plan. The Plan uses the economic resources measurement focus and the full accrual
basis of accounting. Investments are stated at fair value. Contribution revenue is recorded as
contributions are due, pursuant to legal requirements. Benefit payments and refunds of employee
contributions are recognized as expense when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 

Note 14 - Deposits and Investments
Michigan Compiled Laws Section 129.91 (Public Act 20 of 1943, as amended) authorizes local
governmental units to make deposits and invest in the accounts of federally insured banks, credit unions,
and savings and loan associations that have offices in Michigan. The law also allows investments outside
the State of Michigan when fully insured. The local unit is allowed to invest in bonds, securities, and other
direct obligations of the United States or any agency or instrumentality of the United States; repurchase
agreements; bankers’ acceptances of United States banks; commercial paper rated within the two highest
classifications, which matures not more than 270 days after the date of purchase; obligations of the State
of Michigan or its political subdivisions, which are rated as investment grade; and mutual funds composed
of investment vehicles that are legal for direct investment by local units of government in Michigan. 

The Retiree Healthcare Fund is also authorized by Michigan Public Act 314 of 1965, as amended, to
invest in certain reverse repurchase agreements, stocks, diversified investment companies, annuity
investment contracts, real estate leased to public entities, mortgages, real estate (if the trust fund's assets
exceed $250 million), debt or equity of certain small businesses, certain state and local government
obligations, and certain other specified investment vehicles.

The Medical Center has designated deposits and investment policies that are in accordance with statutory
authority banks for the deposit of its funds. The investment policy adopted by the board in accordance with
Public Act 196 of 1997 has authorized investment in all of the items listed above. The Medical Center's
deposits and investment policies are in accordance with statutory authority.
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Note 14 - Deposits and Investments (Continued)
The Medical Center's deposits consist of checking and savings accounts and money market funds. At
year end, the carrying amount of the Medical Center's deposits was approximately $73,700,000, excluding
petty cash. Of the bank balance, $750,000 was covered by federal depository insurance. The rest of the
bank balance, $72,950,000, was not insured or collateralized. 

HHS deposits consist of checking accounts and money market funds. Deposits are recorded on the
financial statements as cash and cash equivalents. At year end, the carrying amount of HHS' deposits
(excluding petty cash) was approximately $1,300,000, and the bank balance was $1,400,000. The bank
balance was higher than the carrying value due to outstanding checks that had not yet cleared the bank at
June 30, 2019. Of the bank balance, $750,000 was covered by federal depository insurance at June 30,
2019.

The Medical Center's cash and investments are subject to several types of risk, which are examined in
more detail below:

Custodial Credit Risk of Bank Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Medical Center's deposits may not
be returned to it. At year end, the Medical Center had approximately $75,909,000 of bank deposits
(certificates of deposit and checking and savings accounts) that were uninsured and uncollateralized. The
Medical Center believes that, due to the dollar amounts of cash deposits and the limits of FDIC insurance,
it is impractical to insure all deposits. As a result, the Medical Center evaluates each financial institution
with which it deposits funds and assesses the level of risk of each institution; only those institutions with an
acceptable estimated risk level are used as depositories.

Custodial Credit Risk of Investments

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Medical Center will
not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. The Medical Center has a deposit policy for custodial credit risk that requires the
investments be held by a nationally chartered custodian bank. The chief investment officer shall select the
custodian bank based on various factors, including bank stability.

At year end, the balances of investment securities that were uninsured and unregistered with securities
held by the counterparty or by its trust department or agent, but not in the Medical Center's name, are as
follows:

Fair Value
Investment Type 2019 2018 How Held

U.S. government or agency bonds $ 132,188,610 $ 128,924,407
Counterparty
trust dept.

Corporate stocks 33,928,970 32,088,503
Counterparty
trust dept.

Corporate bonds 16,900,265 14,859,431
Counterparty
trust dept.

Municipal bonds 3,893,362 4,469,257
Counterparty
trust dept.

Repurchase agreement 50,982,479 40,114,791
Counterparty
trust dept.
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Note 14 - Deposits and Investments (Continued)
Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of investments will decrease as a result of a rise in interest rates.
As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the Medical
Center's investment policy indicates that the duration of each investment account should approximate the
duration of its specific benchmark within a range of 80 percent to 120 percent. At year end, the average
maturities of investments are as follows:

Fair Value

Investment 2019
Weighted-

average Maturity 2018

Primary Government

U.S. government or agency bonds $ 132,188,610 3.7 years $ 128,924,407
GNMA pool 9,257,292 15.31 years 10,019,261
U.S. government CMOs 9,445,627 19.11 years 7,503,756
Corporate bonds 16,900,265 5.65 years 14,859,431
Municipal bonds 3,893,362 Less than 1 year 4,469,257
Money market funds 20,957,096 Less than 1 year 22,825,863
Repurchase agreement 50,982,479 Less than 1 year 40,114,791

Credit Risk

State law limits investments in commercial paper to the top two ratings issued by nationally recognized
statistical rating organizations. The Medical Center has no investment policy that would further limit its
investment choices. As of year end, the credit quality ratings of debt securities (other than the U.S.
government) are as follows: 

Fair Value

Investment 2019 Rating
Rating

Organization 2018

U.S. agency bonds $ 9,876,905 AA+ Fitch $ 9,954,211
U.S. agency bonds 122,311,705 Not Rated 118,970,197
U.S. government CMOs 9,445,627 Not Rated 7,503,756
Corporate bonds 308,407 AAA S&P 638,905
Corporate bonds 5,407,366 AA+ - A- S&P 6,424,007
Corporate bonds 4,202,180 BBB+ - B- S&P 3,972,907
Corporate bonds 219,474 CCC+ S&P 215,315
Corporate bonds 6,762,838 Not Rated 3,608,296
Money market funds 20,957,096 Not Rated 22,825,863
Repurchase agreement 50,982,479 Not Rated 40,114,791

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Medical Center's investment policy limits any single investment to 10 percent of the portfolio, with the
exception of cash or U.S. Treasuries, and further restricts that combined mortgage-backed securities may
not exceed 50 percent of the portfolio. No single investment exceeded 5 percent of the investment
portfolio at June 30, 2019 and 2018.

Note 15 - Risk Management
The Medical Center is exposed to various risks of loss, including hospital professional and patient general
liability claims. The Medical Center has established an irrevocable trust to assist in accumulating
resources to fund excess insurance premiums and to pay claims.
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Note 15 - Risk Management (Continued)
The Medical Center's self-insured retention is $6 million per occurrence annually, with excess claims-
made coverage up to $20 million annually. The Medical Center employs the use of an actuary to provide
an analysis of the existing claims and to estimate the liability for incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims.

The changes in the aggregate malpractice claims for the past three years were as follows:

2019 2018 2017

Estimated liability - Beginning of year $ 24,184,435 $ 24,445,924 $ 26,025,399
Increase in claims liability 10,613,967 293,984 293,984
Defense costs and other fund expenses (996,811) (555,473) (695,684)
Excess insurance premium payments (554,699) - (681,525)
Claim payments (9,293,964) - (496,250)

Estimated liability - End of year $ 23,952,928 $ 24,184,435 $ 24,445,924

Professional liability for claims is reported in other long-term liabilities, net of $3,815,775 and $1,600,000
included as a current liability in accrued expenses for the years ending June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. The carrying amount of the insurance trust assets (at market) amounted to $14,019,847 and
$19,346,545 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The Medical Center is self-insured for workers' compensation claims with a self-insured retainer of
$600,000 per claim. As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Medical Center has recorded long-term accrued
liabilities for workers' compensation of $1,901,763 and $1,725,178, respectively. The changes in the
aggregate workers' compensation claims for the past three years were as follows:

2019 2018 2017

Estimated liability - Beginning of year $ 1,725,178 $ 1,439,441 $ 1,175,972
Increase in claims liability 2,059,522 1,612,688 1,273,341
Excess premium policy (99,725) (99,725) (99,725)
Claim payments (1,783,212) (1,227,226) (910,147)

Estimated liability - End of year $ 1,901,763 $ 1,725,178 $ 1,439,441

Total long-term accrued liabilities as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 are $22,007,188 and $23,359,613,
respectively.

There are various legal actions pending against HHS, its subsidiaries, and certain employees. Due to the
inconclusive nature of these actions, it is not possible for legal counsel of HHS to determine in the
aggregate either the probable outcome of these actions or a reasonable estimate of HHS' ultimate liability,
if any. HHS maintains what it believes to be adequate coverage of malpractice, errors and omissions, and
directors and officers insurances to cover any possible claims.

Note 16 - Joint Ventures
Hurley Medical Center participates in a privately held joint venture. The corporate joint venture is recorded
in the financial statements under the equity method of accounting. Joint venture financial statements can
be obtained by contacting the Medical Center. The Medical Center is unaware of any circumstances that
would cause an additional financial benefit or burden to the Medical Center in the near future.
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Note 16 - Joint Ventures (Continued)
Genesys Hurley Cancer Institute (GHCI) is a joint venture between Hurley Medical Center and Genesys
Regional Medical Center. The venture was established during 2001 to provide outpatient oncology
services, including laboratory and radiation oncology. The Medical Center's net investment at June 30,
2019 and 2018 was $6,826,375 and $6,325,250, respectively. The arrangement provides that the two
entities will share equally in the income or losses of the joint venture. The equity income (loss) to the
Medical Center from this joint venture was approximately $501,125 and $(12,000) for the years ended
June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and is included in other income (expense) on the statement of
revenue, expenses, and changes in net position. No distributions were made to the Medical Center during
the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018. GHCI paid the Medical Center $621,516 and $564,000 for
leased employees for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The following is a summary
of financial position and results of operations of GHCI as of and for the years ended June 30, 2019 and
2018 (in thousands):

2019 2018

Total assets $ 19,502 $ 18,848
Total liabilities 5,891 5,886

Total net assets $ 13,611 $ 12,962

2019 2018

Operating revenue $ 9,036 $ 7,786
Operating expenses 8,463 7,621

Operating income 573 165

Nonoperating income 85 148

Excess of revenue over expense $ 658 $ 313

Note 17 - Union Contract
The Medical Center has nine active collective bargaining agreements and one expired contract currently
undergoing active negotiations. These agreements cover approximately 85 percent of the Medical
Center's employees. The agreements have varying expiration dates ranging from June 30, 2020 through
June 30, 2023.

Note 18 - Related Party Transactions
The Medical Center pays management fees for services rendered by HHS to the Medical Center.
Management fees and contributions from the Medical Center to HHS for the years ended June 30, 2019
and 2018 amounted to approximately $29,721,000 and $27,906,000, respectively. Amounts paid by HHS
to the Medical Center for rent and other miscellaneous expenses for the years ended June 30, 2019 and
2018 amounted to approximately $69,000 and $145,000, respectively.

As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Medical Center had accounts receivable from HHS of $352,373 and
$280,752, respectively, and accounts payable to HHS of $536,635 and $656,751, respectively.
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Note 19 - Agent Defined Benefit Pension Plan Description
In an effort to control future costs, effective January 1, 2014, the Medical Center amended the existing
defined benefit plans. The significant plan provisions prior to January 1, 2014 were as follows:

Plan Description

The Medical Center participates in an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered
by the Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Michigan (MERS of Michigan) that covers all
employees of the Medical Center. MERS of Michigan was established as a statewide public employee
pension plan by the Michigan Legislature under PA 135 of 1945 and is administered by a nine-member
retirement board. MERS of Michigan issues a publicly available financial report, which includes the
financial statements and required supplemental information of this defined benefit plan. This report can be
obtained at www.mersofmich.com or in writing to MERS of Michigan at 1134 Municipal Way, Lansing, MI
48917.

Benefits Provided

The plan provides certain retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. PA
427 of 1984, as amended, established and amends the benefit provisions of the participants in MERS of
Michigan.

The MERS of Michigan plan covers all bargaining and nonbargaining unit employees.

The Medical Center offers a defined benefit plan (the "MERS Plan") that was established by City of Flint,
Michigan ordinances, which includes four benefit options. The Old Contributory Pension Plan (OCPP)
provides for employer contributions and requires employee contributions. Under OCPP, employees may
retire with 25 years of credited service or at age 55 with 10 years of credited service. The monthly
retirement benefit is 2.2 percent of final average compensation (FAC) for the first 25 years of credited
service and 1 percent for every year thereafter. 

The Modified Contributory Pension Plan (MCPP) provides for employer contributions and requires a higher
rate of employee contributions. Benefits fully vest after 15 years of service or at age 55 with 10 years of
service. Employees may retire any time after completion of 25 years of credited service or at age 55 with
10 years of credited service. The monthly retirement benefit is 2.2 percent of the FAC for the first 15 years
of credited service, plus 2.4 percent of the next 10 years, and 1 percent of every year beyond year 25.

The Hurley Alternative Pension Plan (HAPP), provides for employer contributions. Benefits fully vest after
10 years of credited service and a normal retirement age of 60. There are provisions for early retirement
at age 55 with a reduced benefit. The monthly retirement benefit is 1.7 percent of FAC for the first 25
years of credited service and 5 percent for every year thereafter.

The Hurley Post 2014 Plan provides for employer and employee contributions. Benefits fully vest after 15
years of service. Employees may retire at age 50 with 25 years of credited service or age 55 with 15 years
of credited service. The monthly retirement benefit is 1 percent of FAC.

Employees hired on or after January 1, 2014 participate in the Hurley Post 2014 Plan.

Plan Membership Covered by Benefit Terms

At the December 31, 2018 measurement date, the following members were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 1,985
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 268
Active plan members 1,985

Total plan members covered by MERS of Michigan 4,238
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Contributions

Article 9, Section 24 of the State of Michigan constitution requires that financial benefits arising on account
of employee service rendered in each year be funded during that year. Accordingly, MERS retains an
independent actuary to determine the annual contribution. The employer is required to contribute amounts
at least equal to the actuarially determined rate, as established by the MERS retirement board. The
actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by
plan members during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The
employer may establish contribution rates to be paid by its covered employees.

Payable to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Medical Center reported a payable of $1,700,000 and $1,400,000,
respectively, in accrued expenses on the statement of net position for the outstanding amount of
contributions to the MERS Plan required for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

Net Pension Liability

The total pension liability reported at June 30, 2019 was determined using a measure of the total pension
liability and the pension net position as of December 31, 2018. The December 31, 2018 total pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of that date. 

Changes in the net pension liability during the measurement year were as follows:

Increase (Decrease)

Changes in Net Pension Liability
Total Pension

Liability
Plan Net
Position

Net Pension
Liability

Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 591,238,454 $ 443,517,913 $ 147,720,541

Changes for the year:
Service cost 7,326,233 - 7,326,233
Interest 45,880,833 - 45,880,833
Experience differences (4,451,707) - (4,451,707)
Other changes (877) - (877)
Contributions - Employer - 12,221,518 (12,221,518)
Contributions - Employee - 6,574,528 (6,574,528)
Net investment loss - (16,652,228) 16,652,228
Benefit payments, including refunds (42,782,322) (42,782,322) -
Administrative expenses - (842,635) 842,635

Net changes 5,972,160 (41,481,139) 47,453,299

Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 597,210,614 $ 402,036,774 $ 195,173,840
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Changes in the net pension liability during the previous measurement year were as follows:

Increase (Decrease)

Changes in Net Pension Liability
Total Pension

Liability
Plan Net
Position

Net Pension
Liability

Balance at December 31, 2016 $ 578,695,439 $ 403,953,296 $ 174,742,143

Changes for the year:
Service cost 7,618,014 - 7,618,014
Interest 44,953,604 - 44,953,604
Experience differences 1,140,193 - 1,140,193
Contributions - Employer - 22,043,768 (22,043,768)
Contributions - Employee - 6,693,178 (6,693,178)
Net investment income - 52,833,446 (52,833,446)
Benefit payments, including refunds (41,168,796) (41,168,796) -
Administrative expenses - (836,979) 836,979

Net changes 12,543,015 39,564,617 (27,021,602)

Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 591,238,454 $ 443,517,913 $ 147,720,541

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Medical Center recognized pension expense of
$31,113,848 and $29,729,534, respectively.

At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Medical Center reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

2019 2018
Deferred

Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of

Resources

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of

Resources

Difference between expected and
actual experience $ 684,115 $ 4,730,859 $ 912,154 $ 2,164,067

Changes in assumptions - - 7,291,032 -
Net difference between projected

and actual earnings on pension
plan investments 30,817,973 - - 7,828,327

Employer contributions to the plan
subsequent to the measurement
date 6,823,497 - 5,416,381 -

Total $ 38,325,585 $ 4,730,859 $ 13,619,567 $ 9,992,394

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
will be recognized in pension expense as follows. These amounts are exclusive of the employer
contributions to the plan made subsequent to the measurement date of $6,823,497, which will impact the
net pension liability in fiscal year 2020, rather than pension expense.

Years Ending
June 30 Amount

2020 $ 9,484,000
2021 1,925,502
2022 5,133,626
2023 10,228,101
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Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the December 31, 2018 and 2017 actuarial valuations was determined using
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.5 percent
Salary increases 3.75 percent, in the long term, including inflation
Investment rate of return 8.00 percent, net of investment expense, gross of administrative expense,

including inflation
Mortality rates The RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality tables, with rates multiplied by

105 percent
The RP-2014 Employee Mortality Tables

The RP-2014 Juvenile Mortality Tables

Mortality rates were based on a 50 percent male and 50 percent female blend of the tables above. For
disabled retirees, the mortality rates were based on the 50 percent male - 50 percent female blend of the
RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Mortality Tables.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8 percent (net of investment expenses).
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will
be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the
difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the employee rate.

Projected Cash Flows

Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability.
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a model in
which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined
to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by
the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return as of December 31, 2018, the measurement date, for each
major asset class are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class Target Allocation

Long-term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

Global equity %56 %6
Global fixed income 19 1
Real assets 14 7
Diversifying strategies 13 5

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return as of December 31, 2017, the
prior year measurement date, for each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class Target Allocation

Long-term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

Global equity %55 %9
Global fixed income 18 4
Real assets 14 10
Diversifying strategies 13 8

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the Medical Center at June 30, 2019, calculated using
the discount rate of 8.00 percent, as well as what the Medical Center's net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (7.00 percent) or 1 percentage point
higher (9.00 percent) than the current rate:

1 Percent
Decrease
(7.00%)

Current Discount
Rate

(8.00%)

1 Percent
Increase 
(9.00%)

Net pension liability of the Medical Center $ 254,533,529 $ 195,173,840 $ 144,324,708

The following presents the net pension liability of the Medical Center at June 30, 2018, calculated using
the discount rate of 8.00 percent, as well as what the Medical Center's net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (7.00 percent) or 1 percentage point
higher (9.00 percent) than the current rate:

1 Percent
Decrease
(7.00%)

Current Discount
Rate 

(8.00%)

1 Percent
Increase
(9.00%)

Net pension liability of the Medical Center $ 207,533,999 $ 147,720,541 $ 96,540,311
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Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued financial
report. For the purpose of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pension, and pension expense, information about the plan’s fiduciary net
position and additions to/deductions from fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis
as they are reported by the plan. The plan uses the economic resources measurement focus and the full
accrual basis of accounting. Investments are stated at fair value. Contribution revenue is recorded as
contributions are due, pursuant to legal requirements. Benefit payments and refunds of employee
contributions are recognized as expense when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 

Note 20 - Fair Value Measurements
The Medical Center categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure
the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2
inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.
Investments that are measured at fair value using net asset value per share (or its equivalent) as a
practical expedient are not classified in the fair value hierarchy below.

In instances whereby inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in the above fair value
hierarchy, fair value measurements in their entirety are categorized based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the valuation. The Medical Center's assessment of the significance of particular inputs to
these fair value measurements requires judgment and considers factors specific to each asset.

The Medical Center has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2019 and 2018: 

Fair values determined by Level 1 inputs use quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Medical Center has the ability to access.

Fair values determined by Level 2 inputs use other inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly.
These Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets in active markets and other inputs, such as
interest rates and yield curves, that are observable at commonly quoted intervals. 

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs, including inputs that are available in situations where there is little,
if any, market activity for the related asset. These Level 3 fair value measurements are based primarily on
management’s own estimates using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar
techniques taking into account the characteristics of the asset. 

In instances whereby inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in the above fair value
hierarchy, fair value measurements in their entirety are categorized based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the valuation. The Medical Center’s assessment of the significance of particular inputs to
these fair value measurements requires judgment and considers factors specific to each asset. 
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Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis at

June 30, 2019
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets

for Identical
Assets

(Level 1)

Significant Other
Observable

Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3) 

Balance at June
30, 2019

Debt securities:
Money market mutual funds $ 20,957,096 $ - $ - $ 20,957,096
U.S. Treasury securities - 136,081,972 - 136,081,972
Government mortgage-backed

securities - 18,702,919 - 18,702,919
Corporate bonds - 16,900,265 - 16,900,265

Total debt securities 20,957,096 171,685,156 - 192,642,252

Equity securities - Domestic equity
securities 26,221,772 - - 26,221,772

Private equity funds - International
private equity funds 6,413,143 - - 6,413,143

Total investments at fair
value level $ 53,592,011 $ 171,685,156 $ - $ 225,277,167

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis at
June 30, 2018

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets

for Identical
Assets

(Level 1)

Significant Other
Observable

Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3) 

Balance at June
30, 2018

Debt securities:
Money market mutual funds $ 22,825,863 $ - $ - $ 22,825,863
U.S. Treasury securities - 133,393,665 - 133,393,665
Government mortgage-backed

securities - 17,523,017 - 17,523,017
Corporate bonds - 14,859,431 - 14,859,431

Total debt securities 22,825,863 165,776,113 - 188,601,976

Equity securities - Domestic equity
securities 26,082,910 - - 26,082,910

Private equity funds - International
private equity funds 6,005,593 - - 6,005,593

Total investments at fair
value level $ 54,914,366 $ 165,776,113 $ - $ 220,690,479

Debt and equity securities classified in Level 1 are valued using prices quotes in active markets for those
securities.

The fair value of U.S. Treasury securities, government mortgage-backed securities, corporate bonds, and
international private equity funds at June 30, 2019 and 2018 were determined primarily based on Level 2
inputs. The Medical Center estimates the fair value of these investments by automatic methods using
other inputs, such as interest rates and yield curves, that are observable at commonly quoted intervals.
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Hurley Medical Center
Required Supplemental Information

Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
Last Five Fiscal Years

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Total Pension Liability
Service cost $ 7,326,233 $ 7,618,014 $ 7,542,280 $ 7,442,132 $ 7,262,751
Interest 45,880,833 44,953,604 44,306,689 42,384,435 41,412,276
Other changes (877) - (1,066) (1,010) -
Differences between

expected and actual
experience (4,451,707) 1,140,193 (3,480,197) (303,795) -

Changes in assumptions - - - 29,164,128 -
Benefit payments, including

refunds (42,782,322) (41,168,796) (39,469,485) (37,836,677) (36,129,561)

Net Change in Total Pension
Liability 5,972,160 12,543,015 8,898,221 40,849,213 12,545,466

Total Pension Liability -
Beginning of year 591,238,454 578,695,439 569,797,218 528,948,005 516,402,539

Total Pension Liability - End
of year $ 597,210,614 $ 591,238,454 $ 578,695,439 $ 569,797,218 $ 528,948,005

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - Employer $ 12,221,518 $ 22,043,768 $ 21,315,066 $ 14,609,493 $ 5,979,573
Contributions - Member 6,574,528 6,693,178 6,487,981 6,197,682 5,883,466
Net investment (loss)

income (16,652,228) 52,833,446 42,015,304 (5,694,176) 24,690,814
Administrative expenses (842,635) (836,979) (829,764) (854,403) (901,753)
Benefit payments, including

refunds (42,782,322) (41,168,796) (39,469,485) (37,836,677) (36,129,561)

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary
Net Position (41,481,139) 39,564,617 29,519,102 (23,578,081) (477,461)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position -
Beginning of year 443,517,913 403,953,296 374,434,194 398,012,275 398,489,736

Plan Fiduciary Net Position -
End of year $ 402,036,774 $ 443,517,913 $ 403,953,296 $ 374,434,194 $ 398,012,275

Medical Center's Net Pension
Liability - Ending $ 195,173,840 $ 147,720,541 $ 174,742,143 $ 195,363,024 $ 130,935,730

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
as a Percentage of Total
Pension Liability %67.32 %75.02 %69.80 %65.71 %75.25

Covered Payroll $ 114,343,952 $ 117,262,869 $ 113,422,810 $ 109,316,532 $ 103,276,871

Medical Center's Net Pension
Liability as a Percentage of
Covered Payroll %170.69 %125.97 %154.06 %178.71 %126.78
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Hurley Medical Center
Required Supplemental Information
Schedule of Pension Contributions

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Years Ended June 30

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Actuarially determined
contribution $ 12,221,518 $ 10,043,768 $ 8,315,067 $ 7,609,493 $ 7,720,716 $ 9,333,014 $ 12,682,496 $ 11,808,875 $ 6,059,456 $ 13,041,452

Contributions in relation to the
actuarially determined
contribution 13,628,634 22,043,768 21,315,067 14,609,493 7,087,266 10,776,547 10,412,640 10,809,936 9,450,835 11,828,597

Contribution Excess
(Deficiency) $ 1,407,116 $ 12,000,000 $ 13,000,000 $ 7,000,000 $ (633,450) $ 1,443,533 $ (2,269,856) $ (998,939) $ 3,391,379 $ (1,212,855)

Covered Payroll $114,343,952 $117,262,869 $113,422,810 $109,316,532 $103,276,871 $107,836,591 $ 82,825,759 $116,841,151 $114,100,876 $123,941,771

Contributions as a Percentage
of Covered Payroll %11.92 %18.80 %18.79 %13.36 %6.86 %9.99 %12.57 %9.25 %8.28 %9.54

Notes to Schedule of Pension Contributions

Actuarial valuation information relative to the determination of contributions:

Valuation date Contributions for the Medical Center's fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 were determined based on the actuarial valuation as of December 31,
2017. The most recent valuation is as of December 31, 2017.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry age
Amortization method Level percentage of pay
Remaining amortization period 21 years
Asset valuation method Five-year smoothed market
Inflation 2.50 percent
Salary increase 3.75 percent in the long term
Investment rate of return 8.0 percent - Gross of pension plan investment expense, including inflation
Retirement age Experience-based table of rates are specific to the type of eligibility condition
Mortality RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Mortality Tables of a 50 percent male and 50 percent female blend
Other information None
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Hurley Medical Center
Required Supplemental Information

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Last Four Fiscal Years

2019 2018 2017 2016

Total OPEB Liability
Service cost $ 753,386 $ 735,528 $ 715,842 $ 787,997
Interest 6,083,297 6,251,484 6,088,805 5,916,624
Changes in benefit terms - (643,385) - -
Differences between expected and actual

experience (2,780,513) (3,012,210) - -
Changes in assumptions - (1,836,169) - -
Benefit payments, including refunds (3,477,330) (4,514,282) (4,294,637) (3,940,800)

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability 578,840 (3,019,034) 2,510,010 2,763,821

Total OPEB Liability - Beginning of year 91,484,893 94,503,927 91,993,917 89,230,096

Total OPEB Liability - End of year $ 92,063,733 $ 91,484,893 $ 94,503,927 $ 91,993,917

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - Employer $ 3,841,324 $ 3,884,465 $ 5,523,202 $ 5,613,665
Net investment income (loss) 5,152,690 4,197,653 5,308,681 (53,346)
Benefit payments, including refunds (3,477,330) (4,514,282) (4,294,637) (3,940,800)

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 5,516,684 3,567,836 6,537,246 1,619,519

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning of
year 63,230,304 59,662,468 53,125,222 51,505,703

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - End of year $ 68,746,988 $ 63,230,304 $ 59,662,468 $ 53,125,222

Net OPEB Liability - Ending $ 23,316,745 $ 28,254,589 $ 34,841,459 $ 38,868,695

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of Total OPEB Liability %74.67 %69.12 %63.13 %57.75

Contributions to the OPEB plan are not based on a measure of pay; therefore, no covered payroll is presented.
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Hurley Medical Center
Required Supplemental Information

Schedule of OPEB Contributions
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Years Ended June 30

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Actuarially determined
contribution $ 3,841,324 $ 3,884,465 $ 5,523,161 $ 5,558,658 $ 5,930,118 $ 5,964,296 $ 7,011,793 $ 7,071,235 $ 7,417,585 $ 7,521,118

Contributions in relation to the
actuarially determined
contribution 3,841,324 3,884,465 5,523,202 5,613,665 5,930,124 5,964,300 7,012,008 7,071,240 7,418,004 7,521,118

Contribution Excess $ - $ - $ 41 $ 55,007 $ 6 $ 4 $ 215 $ 5 $ 419 $ -

Notes to Schedule of OPEB Contributions

Actuarial valuation information relative to the determination of contributions:

Valuation date Actuarially determined contributions rates are calculated as of June 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which the contributions are
reported.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Amortization method Level dollar, closed
Remaining amortization period 19 years
Asset valuation method Market value
Inflation 2.75 percent
Healthcare cost trend rates Trend started at 9.0 percent and gradually decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 3.25 percent
Salary increase 3.25 percent, including inflation
Investment rate of return 6.75 percent, net of OPEB plan investment expense, including inflation
Retirement age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility condition
Mortality Postretirement: RPH-2014 Blue Collar Health Annuitant Mortality Table for males and females, adjusted backward to 2006 with MP-2014. The

provision for future mortality improvement is the fully generational projection table MP-2015, beginning in 2006.

Disabled Retirement: RPH-2014 Disabled Mortality Table for males and females is used, adjusted backward to 2006 with MP-2014. The
provision for future mortality improvement is the fully generational projection table MP-2015, beginning in 2006.

Preretirement: RPH-2014 Blue Collar Employee Mortality Table for males and females is used, adjusted backward to 2006 with MP-2014. The
provision for future mortality improvement is the fully generational projection table MP-2015, beginning in 2006.
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Hurley Medical Center
Required Supplemental Information

Schedule of OPEB Investment Returns
Last Four Fiscal Years

Years Ended June 30

2019 2018 2017 2016

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of
investment expense %8.3 %7.6 %10.6 %0.6
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Independent Auditor's Report on Additional Information

To the Board of Hospital Managers
Hurley Medical Center

We have audited the basic financial statements of Hurley Medical Center as of and for the years ended June 30,
2019 and 2018. Our audits were performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
as a whole. The consolidating balance sheet and consolidating statement of operations are presented for the
purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has
not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

October 30, 2019
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Hurley Medical Center

Consolidating Balance Sheet
June 30, 2019

(with comparative totals for 2018)

Hurley Medical
Center

Hurley Health
Services

Eliminating
Entries

2019
Consolidated

Total

2018
Consolidated

Total

Assets

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 73,737,272 $ 1,820,942 $ - $ 75,558,214 $ 56,885,096
Patient accounts receivable - Net 44,716,234 1,246,090 (3,841) 45,958,483 36,164,122
Other receivables 6,367,498 1,825,686 (920,501) 7,272,683 8,611,615
Estimated third-party payor

settlements 17,895,969 - - 17,895,969 18,433,856
Assets limited as to use 8,555,700 156,508 - 8,712,208 8,522,399
Inventory 5,790,256 24,954 - 5,815,210 4,126,983
Prepaid expenses and other 3,441,697 306,479 (1,550) 3,746,626 5,417,957

Total current assets 160,504,626 5,380,659 (925,892) 164,959,393 138,162,028

Assets Limited as to Use
Held by trustee - Bond 7,905,664 - - 7,905,664 8,092,391
Restricted and held in trust -

Other 14,360,136 - - 14,360,136 19,623,451
By the board 128,327,467 - - 128,327,467 121,193,090

Capital Assets - Net 103,894,340 939,935 - 104,834,275 105,571,522

Other Assets
Investment in Hurley Health

Services 4,261,126 - (4,261,126) - -
Investment in joint ventures 6,826,375 42,000 - 6,868,375 6,367,250
Other - - - - 965,871

Total other assets 11,087,501 42,000 (4,261,126) 6,868,375 7,333,121

Total assets 426,079,734 6,362,594 (5,187,018) 427,255,310 399,975,603

Deferred Outflows of Resources 38,963,597 960,201 - 39,923,798 14,373,286

Total assets and
deferred outflows of
resources $ 465,043,331 $ 7,322,795 $ (5,187,018) $ 467,179,108 $ 414,348,889

Additional schedules are not GAAP basis under GASB, but are for comparative purposes to hospital industry practices for
not-for-profit healthcare providers.
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Hurley Medical Center

Consolidating Balance Sheet (Continued)
June 30, 2019

(with comparative totals for 2018)

Hurley Medical
Center

Hurley Health
Services

Eliminating
Entries

2019
Consolidated

Total

2018
Consolidated

Total

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and taxes

withheld $ 19,811,665 $ 625,179 $ (924,342) $ 19,512,502 $ 16,435,065
Current portion of long-term debt 6,380,000 68,820 - 6,448,820 6,229,629
Estimated third-party payor

settlements 17,203,163 - - 17,203,163 22,159,283
Accrued expenses 37,112,777 2,055,294 - 39,168,071 33,551,237

Total current liabilities 80,507,605 2,749,293 (924,342) 82,332,556 78,375,214

Long-term Debt - Net of current
portion - Notes payable 66,244,910 312,376 - 66,557,286 73,427,633

Other Long-term Liabilities
Net pension liability 195,173,840 - - 195,173,840 147,720,541
Other 22,007,188 - - 22,007,188 23,359,613
Accrued postretirement benefit

obligations 23,316,745 - - 23,316,745 28,254,589

Total liabilities 387,250,288 3,061,669 (924,342) 389,387,615 351,137,590

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows related to

postemployment benefit
obligations 6,699,321 - (1,550) 6,697,771 14,319,575

Deferred inflows related to
pensions 4,730,859 - - 4,730,859 -

Total deferred inflows
of resources 11,430,180 - (1,550) 11,428,630 14,319,575

Total liabilities and
deferred inflows of
resources 398,680,468 3,061,669 (925,892) 400,816,245 365,457,165

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 35,576,590 558,739 - 36,135,329 30,315,052
Donor restricted for specific

operating activities 5,463,084 - - 5,463,084 6,658,212
Unrestricted 25,323,189 3,702,387 (4,261,126) 24,764,450 11,918,460

Total net position 66,362,863 4,261,126 (4,261,126) 66,362,863 48,891,724

Total liabilities,
deferred inflows of
resources, and net
position $ 465,043,331 $ 7,322,795 $ (5,187,018) $ 467,179,108 $ 414,348,889

Additional schedules are not GAAP basis under GASB, but are for comparative purposes to hospital industry practices for
not-for-profit healthcare providers.
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Hurley Medical Center

Consolidating Statement of Operations
Year Ended June 30, 2019

(with comparative totals for 2018)

Hurley Medical
Center

Hurley Health
Services 

Eliminating
Entries

2019
Consolidated

Total

2018
Consolidated

Total

Operating Revenue
Net patient service revenue $ 415,316,681 $ 5,836,105 $ (221,048) $ 420,931,738 $ 401,096,761
Other operating revenue 44,446,590 30,181,753 (30,679,209) 43,949,134 39,852,029

Total operating revenue 459,763,271 36,017,858 (30,900,257) 464,880,872 440,948,790

Operating Expenses
Salaries and wages 175,900,424 27,304,806 - 203,205,230 197,467,956
Employee benefits and payroll taxes 73,164,263 4,571,886 - 77,736,149 69,463,435
Operating supplies and expenses 63,613,588 - - 63,613,588 62,763,259
Purchased services and other 65,233,147 495,692 (29,058,262) 36,670,577 36,276,246
Purchased services and other 54,760,310 3,543,560 (1,841,995) 56,461,875 48,380,798
Depreciation and amortization 13,780,372 142,180 - 13,922,552 14,688,074
Interest expense 4,456,602 - - 4,456,602 4,742,453

Total operating expenses 450,908,706 36,058,124 (30,900,257) 456,066,573 433,782,221

Nonoperating Income (Expense) 8,854,565 (40,266) - 8,814,299 7,166,569

Other Income (Expense)
Investment income (loss) 8,698,332 256 - 8,698,588 (413,208)
Decrease in investment in Hurley Health

Services (57,050) - 57,050 - -
Other income (loss) 501,125 (17,040) - 484,085 11,229

Total nonoperating income (expense) 9,142,407 (16,784) 57,050 9,182,673 (401,979)

Excess of Revenue Over (Under) Expenses
before Other Activity, Restricted Funds
Activity, and Transfer of Funds 17,996,972 (57,050) 57,050 17,996,972 6,764,590

Other - Transfers to unrestricted from
restricted funds for the purchase of
capital assets 669,305 - - 669,305 222,268

Excess of Revenue Over (Under) Expenses
before Other Activity, Restricted Funds
Activity, and Transfer of Funds - Before
Restricted Fund Activity and Transfer
of Funds 18,666,277 (57,050) 57,050 18,666,277 6,986,858

Restricted Fund Activity and Transfer of
Funds (525,833) - - (525,833) (1,247,702)

Transfer to Unrestricted Net Position -
Purchase of capital assets (669,305) - - (669,305) (222,268)

Net Position 17,471,139 (57,050) 57,050 17,471,139 5,516,888

Net Assets - Beginning of year 48,891,724 4,318,176 (4,318,176) 48,891,724 43,374,836

Net Assets - End of year $ 66,362,863 $ 4,261,126 $ (4,261,126) $ 66,362,863 $ 48,891,724
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